ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD /5—_332
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT :

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICA'@E CEIVED

This Section must be completed for all projects. (ORE o MAL AUG 1 8 2015

Facility/Project Identification HEALTH FAGILITIES &
Facility Name: Rockford Memorial Hospital-Rockton Avenue Campus SERVICES REVIE ARD
Street Address: 2400 North Rockton Avenue Rockford, iL 61103 '

City and Zip Code: Raockford, IL }
County: Winnebago Health Service Area ] Heaith Planning Area: B-01 |

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Interstate Alliance, Inc. d/b/a MercyRockford Health System
Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103

Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Javon R. Bea

CEOQO Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103

Telephone Number: 815/971-5000

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation L] Governmental
L] Limited Liability Company [] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies-must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name: Jacob M. Axel |
Title: President

Company Name; Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067

Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: James P. Evans

Title: Vice President and General Counsel
Company Name: Rockford Health System

Address: 2350 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103
Telephone Number:  815/971-5000

E-mail Address: ipevans@rhsnet.org

Fax Number: 815/961-1449




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Rockford Memorial Hospital-Rockton Avenue Campus

Street Address: 2400 North Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103

City and Zip Code: Rockford, IL

County: Winnebago Health Service Area | Health Planning Area: B-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Rockford Memorial Hospital

Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103
Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Javon R. Bea

CEO Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103

Telephone Number: 815/971-5000

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation [ Governmental
] Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

“APPEND DOCUNEN
. APPLICATION'FORM

Primary Contact

[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

| Name: James P. Evans
Title: Vice President and General Counsel
Company Name: Rockford Health System
Address: 2350 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103
Telephone Number:  815/971-5000
E-mail Address: jpevans@rhsnet.org
Fax Number: 815/961-1449




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Rockford Memorial Hospital-Rockton Avenue Campus

Street Address: 2400 North Rockton Avenue Rockford, il. 61103

City and Zip Code: Rockford, IL

County:

Winnebago Health Service Area I Health Planning Area: B-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Rockford Health System

Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103
Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer.  Javon R. Bea

CEOQO Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, Il. 61103
Telephone Number: 815/971-5000

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

]

Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
For-profit Corporation O] Governmental
Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lliinois certificate of good standing.
Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number:  847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: James P. Evans

Title: Vice President and General Counsel
Company Name: Rockford Health System

Address: 2350 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103
Telephone Number:  815/971-5000

E-mail Address: jpevans@rhsnet.org

Fax Number: 815/961-1449




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY

THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: James P. Evans

Title: Vice President and General Counsel
Company Name: Rockford Health System

Address: 2350 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, L 61103
Telephone Number:  815/971-5000

E-mail Address: jpevans@rhsnet.org

Fax Number: 815/961-1449

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Rockford Memorial Hospital
Address of Site Owner: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: legal description provided
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership are
property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation attesting to

ownershlp, an o tion to Iease a letter of mtent to Iease or a Iease

'_APPEND -DOCUMENTATI,
“APPLICATION FORM..

AS TTACHMENT-Z‘ IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFT

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Rockford Memorial Hospital

Address: 2400 N. Rockton Avenue Rockford, IL 61103 (current)

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lilinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownershi&

5y
G

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial

; coqtrjb tion




Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable
format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of
lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (http:/flwww.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation

Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. : ) : o

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1110 Classification:

X Substantive

] Non-substantive




2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal description
of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

The applicants are submitting three CON applications, addressing three projects that are inter-related
and dependent on one another. One project addresses a reconfiguration of the existing Rockford
Memorial Hospital (RMH) facility, through the repurposing of a portion of the hospital’s existing space
for a variety of uses, including hospital services and the housing of community-based not-for-profit
agencies. This application addresses this project, and for purposes of this application, RMH’s existing
location will be referred to as the Rockford Memorial Hospital-Rockton Avenue Campus, or RMH-

Rockton Avenue,

The existing hospital is located at 2400 North Rockton Avenue in Rockford, Illinois.

RMH-Rockton Avenue will retain its current IDPH license to operate as a hospital, and among the

clinical services that will continue to be provided at RMH-Rockton Avenue, are:
e 70 Medical/Surgical beds (three units)

20 Acute Mental Illness (psychiatry) beds (one unit)

4 ICU beds

16 observation beds (one unit)

an Emergency Department

a Convenient Care Center

surgical suite

physicians’ offices

surgery and surgical recovery

a pain management center

a wound care center

outpatient clinics

cardiac and pulmonary rehabilitation

radiation oncology

oncology infusion

diagnostic imaging

sleep lab

physical and occupational therapy

respiratory therapy

clinical laboratory

pharmacy

The project cost identified in the following section of this application includes only those costs that are
directly associated with the project. On a routine basis, and in order to maintain RMH, the applicants
annually invest $6-7M on facility renovations and $9-10M on equipment upgrades and replacement.
These spending levels are anticipated to continue through the duration of the projects.

The Rockford Memorial Hospital campus consists of five primary buildings:

&




1. The main hospital building consists of a number of components constructed between 1954 and
2002. This building contains all of the hospital’s inpatient services and many of the outpatient
services. The primary purpose of this building will not change with the proposed project.

2. The Rockford Medical Group Building is immediately to the south of and connected to the

hospital building. This building primarily houses physicians’ office space and administrative
space. These functions will continue to be provided in this building.

3. The Clinic Building consists of approximately 207,000 square feet, was built between 1951 and
1991, and contains physicians’ offices, a convenient care center, and hospital and system
admuinistrative functions. This building will be vacated, with physicians’ offices and selective
administrative functions relocating to the Rockford Medical Group Building and the remainder
of the administrative functions relocating to the hospital building. The convenient care center
will be re-located to the hospital. The Clinic Building will be made available to area not-for-
profit groups and agencies, and primarily those with a health care/wellness mission.

4. The North Office Building was constructed in 1957, contains primarily administrative and

physicians’ offices, and will be vacated through the proposed project. The potential exists to
demolish this building following the completion of the proposed project.

5. The Ingersoll Biiilding is located on the west side of the hHospital eampus, separated from the
other buildings by a large parking lot. This building was constructed in 1954 as a nurses’
dormitory, currently houses administrative offices, sleep rooms and physicians’ offices, and will

be demolished.

The following clinical areas will either be re-located within the existing hospital facility, re-located to
the proposed new hospital, and/or down-sized through the proposed project:

RMH currently has 13 nursing units used for M/S, pediatrics, obstetrics and acute mental illness.
Upon the project’s completion, three of the units will house M/S beds, one unit will house AMI, and
one unit will operate as an observation unit. The remaining units will be re-purposed for
administrative functions.

The current 12-bed surgical intensive care unit will become a 4-bed general ICU.
The surgical suite, which currently has 14 operating rooms will become a 4-OR suite.
The emergency department will be down-sized from 31 to 17 treatment stations.

The convenient care center currently located in the Clinic Building (located to the south of the
hospital) will be re-located to vacated space in the emergency department

The laboratory functions currently located in the Clinic Building will be incorporated into the
hospital’s main laboratory.




* The wound care center currently located in the Clinic Building will be re-located to the first floor of
the hospital, in space currently occupied by the sleep lab.

o The GI lab will be re-located to the RMH-Riverside campus.
» The imaging department will retain its current location, and will provide four procedure rooms.

o The cardiac catheterization lab will be re-located to the Riverside campus.

A second project, which is addressed in a separate application, addresses the establishment of a second
hospital facility and campus, which will include Medical/Surgical, Obstetrics, Pediatrics, and ICU beds,
a regional NICU, observation beds, an Emergency Department, an urgent care center, a wide scope of
outpatient services, physicians’ offices, and hospital support services. This hospital facility will be
referred to as Rockford Memorial Hospital-Riverside Boulevard Campus, or RMH-Riverside.

RMH-Rockton Avenue and RMH-Riverside will operate with a common licensee, a common Board of
Directors, and a common Medical Staff.

A summary of the clinical services to be provided on the two campuses is attached.

A third project, which is also addressed in a separate application, addresses the development of a
medical clinics building adjacent and connected to RMH-Riverside.

At the conclusion of the three projects, the bed inventory will be reduced by 109 beds, 69 of which will
be Medical/Surgical beds.

This application, addressing Rockford Memorial Hospital’s existing campus, is a substantive application
since it addresses the discontinuation of certain IDPH-designated categories of service at RMH-Rockton

Avenue.




DISTRIBUTION OF CLINICAL SERVICES

Service
Medical/Surgical Units
Adult ICU
Pediatric ICU
Pediatrics Unit
Psychiatry Unit
Obstetrics Unit
Neonatal Intesnsive Care Unit
Emergency Department
Convenient Care Center
Radiology/Imaging Department
Inpatient Surgery
Outpatient Surgery
Cardiac Cath/Open Heart Surgery
Outpatient Diagnostics
Inpatient Diagnostics
Cancer Center
Cardiopulmonary Rehab.
Infusion Therapy Center
Wound Care Center
Physical Therapy
Occupational & Speech Therapy
Laboratory
Physicians' Offices

Rockton Ave.
Campus
X
X
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Riverside
Campus
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OFFICE OF THE (GOVERNOR

207 StatE Housk
SPRINGFIELD, ILuinois 62706

BRUCE RAUNER
COVERNOR

August 13, 2015

MercyRockford Health System
Rockford, Ilinois 61101

Congratulations!

As Governor of the State of Illinois, I am pleased to welcome everyone gathered for the
MercyRockford Health System announcement to build a brand new hospital in Rockford, Illinois.

I would like to take this opportunity to commend the organizers and volunteers of today’s event.
This is an opportune moment to rejoice in the fact that MercyRockford Health Systems chose to
move their corporate headquarters to Rockford. Located off of 1-90, this $350 million healthcare
facility is one of the largest and most significant projects in Rockford. By expanding upon the
current neonatal region program, this hospital will become the most state-of-the-art health center.
Furthermore, this project will expand services, strengthen patient care, enhance access, and bring
jobs and economic growth to the region while helping Rockford become a healthcare destination.

On behalf of the people of Illinois, I offer my best wishes for a memorable event and many years of
success.

Sincerely,

.

Bruce Rauner
Govemor, State of Illinois
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Scott H. Christiansen
@ounty Board Chairman

Qounty of Winnebago

Ms. Courtney Avery, Administrator July 29, 2015

525 West Jefferson
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

" Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

I have been honored to serve as Chairman of the Winnebago County Board since 2004. Over that
time period, the county has engaged with many health care providers as they make plans to
provide or expand services in Winnebago County.

Like other government officials, we at the county have been concerned about the long-term
impact of these plans on access to care, jobs, and outmigration. And, because Winnebago
County borders Wisconsin, we have also been concerned with the county’s ability to attract and
retain services, knowing that the continued existence of those services is critical to the wellbeing

of our citizens and our communities.

Because our primary focus has been economic development, coupled with providing the best
possible services for our residents, we were exceptionally honored and grateful to learn that
MercyRockford has chosen to locate its corporate offices in Illinois. Their investment of dollars
and resources into expanded health services in the Winnebago County region, strengthens our

entire health care industry statewide .

MercyRockford’s choice to develop an innovative “one hospital, two campus” plan will insure
the vitality and accessibility of services at both the existing Westside Rockton Avenue campus,
as well as at the new Riverside campus. This decision, I believe, reflects MercyRockford’s

commitment to our entire region.

We are very aware that these dollars might have been invested elsewhere. MercyRockford’s
development on its Riverside campus will inject significant new capital dollars into Winnebago
County and the State of Illinois. This project will have a major impact on the region, both from a

health care perspective, as well as an economic one.

Best Regards,

Seo# (T =

Scott H. Christiansen, Chairman
Winnebago County Board

404 Elm Street - Room 533 * Rockford, IL 61101 Phone (815) 319-422§5 - Fax (815) 3194226
E-mail: countyboardchairmanscffice@wincoil.us Website: www.wincoil.us

It Is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for at! people in Winnebago County.

i




Excellence Everywhere

llli(ll\i’(}i ,4__///, N
ROCKI'ORD
'//,// THEINOIS.USA

Lawrence J. Morrissey
Mayor
Oftfice of the Mayor

August 11, 2015

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

525 West Jefferson

Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery.
This letter is submitted in support of MercyRockford’s applications to your agency.

As Mayor of the City of Rockford since 2005, I am directly involved in the operations and oversight of the City's Fire
Department EMS system. [ work closely with our local medical systems. I am also involved in assessing the current and future
health care needs of our community. Qur community’s medical systems support our quality of life and core economic activity.
Consequently, I have been engaged with MercyRockford about their recent merger of Mercy Alliance, Inc. and Rockford
Health System. I believe that this merger can bring economic vitality and opportunity while improving the quality of care to the
residents of my community.

I am optimistic that the specific projects before you, including the construction of a new East Side Rockford Campus, can help
achieve these important goals. The City of Rockford is committed to working with MercyRockford on the implementation of

these projects to ensure that the long-standing commitment of MercyRockford to the residents of the west side of Rockford is
fulfilled, while seeking to expand access to critical services through the development of its East Side Riverside/I-90 campus.

Ensuring Quality Care to Rockford's West Side Residents

Of critical importance to me is to ensure that the entire Rockford community, particularly those sections of our community that
are the most vulnerable as it relates to poverty and poor health outcomes, receive equal and quality access to healthcare.
MercyRockford has assured me that they will continue to provide vital healthcare services to Rockford’s west side through its
commitment to the Rockton Avenue campus. Specifically, MercyRockford will continue to operate 94 inpatient beds, an
emergency department, a surgical suite, and a wide range of inpatient and outpatient support services at its Rockton Avenue

campus on the west side.

Although part of the MercyRockford plan includes the closure of a large medical building on the Rockton Avenue Campus,
MercyRockford has committed to work with the City of Rockford and our economic development partners to create a binding
operating partnership for that building that will help us grow new high-quality jobs for our community. In fact, we believe that
this generous partnership can result in a significant opportunity to market that building as a hub for technology and healthcare-
related jobs anchored by the significant broadband fiber optic backbone integrated into the Rockton Avenue Campus.

Expanding Care & Specialty Pediatric Scrvices through the New Campus

MercyRaockford’s plans to add pediatric specialty care services at its Riverside/I-90 campus in addition to emergency and adult
hospital beds will also greatly improve healthcare access for the entire Rockford community. Currently, many of these critical
services for our citizens must be accessed by traveling long distances to Chicago or State of Wisconsin medical facilities. We

City of Rockford, lllinois USA
425 East State Street Rockford, lllinois 61104-1068 USA

(779) 348-7150 phone (815) 967-6952 fax www.rockfordil.gov
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Lawrence J. Morrissey
Mayor
Office of the Mayor

have a great opportunity to expand those services so that we will capture additional revenue and jobs for lllinois and avoid
outmigration of those services outside the State of Illinois.

The City of Rockford will also be working with MercyRockford through our discussions regarding a final Annexation
Agreement to ensure that the roadways and public infrastructure for the East Side Campus meets the needs of our community
in a manner that is financially responsible and respectful to the taxpayers of our community. The City of Rockford Fire
Department is the largest provider of EMS ambulance services for our community, and we are working with MercyRockford to
ensure that we can meet basic EMS and Level 1 trauma needs under the proposed MercyRockford service configuration. While
there are several details that need to be worked out to our mutual satisfaction, the citizens of our community will retain
important controls over those elements through the binding Annexation Agreement and Development Agreement we will
execute prior to the commencement of construction.

Supporting the Healthy Rockford Initiative

The City of Rockford is committed to the long-term health and wellness needs of our community, Qur Police and Fire
Department first responders are vital partners in these efforts. We are also committed to grow our efforts to integrate mobile
health and community paramedic health to more closely integrate our work with our local hospital systems and community
healthcare providers. The City of Rockford is working with partners like the University of Illinois College of Medicine, local
healthcare providers, and employers to create a coordinated long-term, data-driven community health project known currently
as the Healthy Rockford Initiative. 1 am excited that MercyRockford is committed to partnering with us to support this effort to
help us drive better health and prosperity for our entire community.

I was born and raised in Rockford. My parents live in the northeast side of the City in the 4th Ward where the new campus will
be built. I currently live with my wife and four children in the northwest side of the City, which has been historically anchored
by the Rockton Campus. Our vision for the City of Rockford is Excellence Everywhere for Everyone. To that end, I support
MercyRockford’s proposed projects for both the immediate and long-term positive economic impact and the expanded
healthcare services that they will provide. I trust the historic commitment that the MercyRockford partnership brings to our
community and the development tools that will bind that commitment with us in a manner that will help ensure balanced

growth and mutual prosperity for all parts of our community.

City of Rockford, Hliinois USA

425 East State Street Rockford, illinois 61104-1068 USA
(779) 348-7150 ghone (815) 967-6952 fax www.rackfordil.gov
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Ann Thompson-Kelly
7™ Ward Alderman
Rockford City Council

August 6, 2015

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

525 West Jefferson

Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

I am an Alderman for the City of Rockford, representing the 7" Ward, and I am submitting this letter to
record my strong support for MercyRockford’s Certificate of Need applications. My ward includes the
area where the current Rockford Memorial Hospital campus on North Rockton Avenue is located.

MercyRockford has briefed me about their plans and I am an enthusiastic supporter. Like other elected
Rockford officials, I have been concermned about changes in health care that might erode access to care for
those residents who rely on Medicaid services. MercyRockford’s “one hospital on two campuses” plan
insures that Rockford residents that have long relied on services provided at the North Rockton Avenue
campus can continue to rely on those services, as inpatient beds, emergency services, and in- and out-
patient services will continue to be provided there.

I am also pleased that MercyRockford is looking to partner with the community to repurpose high quality
facilities on North Rockton Avenue to support local agencies, program development and jobs growth. I
know that MercyRockford could have put forward plans that might have materially disabled the North
Rockton Avenue campus from providing necessary services, and I commend them for their commitment
to the west side of Rockford.

Very truly yours,

7" Ward Alderman
City of Rockford

City of Rockford, Illinois USA
425 East State Street Rockford, illinois 61104-1068 USA

(779-348-7300) (815) 967-6952 fax www.rockfordil.gov
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t. 815.756.1521

( 1 Kish Hospital Drive | P.O. Box 707
KishHealth System ek, L 60115
o Hoealth Erpowarod,

August 10, 2015

Javon R. Bea

President and CEO
MercyRockford Health System
1000 Mineral Point Avenue
Janesville, W1 53548

Dear Mr. Bea:

Thank you for sharing your plans with me regarding your future plans for construction
and modernization of the MercyRockford Hospital and the concept of “one hospital, two
campuses.”

As you know, our Health System has enjoyed a long standing working relationship with
Rockford Memorial Hospital. That relationship has enabled us to better coordinate care on behalf
of the patients we serve. In addition, that relationship has insured access to high quality tertiary
care, especially for neonatal and perinatal services for the residents of DeKalb County.

Rockford Memorial has served as our State designated Regional Perinatal Center for
years. Of critical importance to our communities are the neonatal intensive care and perinatal
services offered by Rockford Memorial Hospital and their highly qualified staff. Access to
critical obstetrical, pediatric critical care and specialty services will be enhanced by the planned
relocation of these services to MercyRockford’s Riverside campus. Given the high percentage of
Tllinois Medicaid recipients who are children, we believe that this improved access will materially
and significantly benefit children who rely on Medicaid for their health care.

MercyRockford’s thoughtful plan for “one hospital, two campuses” will improve access
to health care services for the residents of the communities surrounding Rockford. KishHealth
System supports the efforts of existing quality providers to both modernize their facilities to meet
the growing needs and demands of its patients and the communities they serve.

I wish you success with your application process and look forward to a strong
relationship with you in your updated facilities.

Very truly yours,
/éﬁf//t fonZire

Kevin Poorten

President and CEO

KishHealth System
M"“&ghm
L\\N\*ﬁ ' - T =-

e ]‘me www.kishhealth.org
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rrstar.com

By The Editorial Board
Rockford Register Star

August 13. 2015 12:57PM

Our View: MercyRockford Health System expansion makes us a regional health
destination

For years we've talked about Rockford becoming 4 regional destination for top-level specialty medicz! care. Now, the Forest City is about Lo become one.

The announcement by MercyRockford Health System that the $2 billion nonprofit corporation will put both its corporate headquarters and a new, state-of-
the-art bospital cainpus southeast of the junction of Riverside Boulevard and Interstate 9o will make us a regional health care destination. MercyRockford is
the result of the combination of Janesville, Wisconsin-based Mercy Health System and Rockford Health System. The 263-acre Riverside property, bought by
the old Rockford Health System about 20 years ago, has a preannexation agreement with Roekford.

MercyRocldord is seeking no tax rebates from the city, nor are any cash incentives from local or state governments involved. The land is not in a tax increment
financing district.

The $400 million building project doesn't mean the health care system is forsaking its 60-year-old campus on North Rockton Avenue. Far from il.
MercyRockford has just installed a $7 million lincar accelerator in its cancer center. MeveyRockford President and CEO Javon Bea, who grew up on the city's
west side, said the health care system will continue to invest no less than $8 nillion a year at the Rockton Avenue campus, ensuring its jong-term future.

Bea said it is not possible to build the new, large hospital buildings on the North Rockton Avenue campus because “we're landlocked there."

Without the addition of the new campus, however, it's likely that the Rockton Avenue location would have slowly faded away. Not now. High-qualily hiealth
care wilf continue to be delivered on the city's west side.

The new Riverside eampus will cantralize intensive care services and become a regional health care destination for patients from a 15-county area of northern
1llinois and southern Wisconsin. With its convenient location next to I-go, the new facility will contain 2 women's and children's hospital, a neonatal intensive
care unit, pediatric intensive care unit, high-risk maternity care services, a Level One irauma center and more,

Just think of it. Instead of patients from around the region beiug referred to Madison, Wisconsin, many will be referred here instead.

We are really excited, too, by the community-wide advantages this medical sup ter will give the Rockford region. The project will provide hundreds of
construction jobs. Its presence here will greatly boost economic development efforts in the area. It will help companies in our growing aerospace sector attract
engineers and other professionals to move here. It will be a great sales tool for the real estate business.

The Riverside campns will encourage retail growth nearby as well as on the huge site. A new hotel will be needed to handle the health care system's needs and
the crowds coming to the Rockford Park District's expanding Sports Core 2 across Riverside Boulevard, MercyRockford pledges to make a "substantial
contribution" to the Sports Core 2 expansion, said Dave Syverson, a Mercy Rockford board member. He's also & Republican state senator froin Rockford.

The health sector here already was humming, and we think the MercyRockford development will be a boon to the other health care systems in the city, UW
Swedish American and OSF St. Anthony, which is also building a new hospital on its sprawling Fast State Street campus. As we develop higher Jevels of
excellent health care here, all systems will get stronger,

And adding to the momentum is the University of Illinois College of Medicine, which is developing plans for five new residency programs that will help keep a
supply of young physicians in the pipeline. As we develop higher levels of excellent health care here, all systerns will get stronger.

We're sure that everybody will be totally pumped about this eonfidence boast to the northern Illinois and southern Wisconsin region.

It's a great day for the Forest City.

http:fiwww.restar.convanticle/20150813/OPINION/150818744
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PROJECT COST AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Reviewable Non-Reviewable TOTAL

Project Cost:

Preplanning Costs $ 80,000 | $ 70,000 $ 150,000

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts 2,546,685 2,793,785 5,340,470

Contingencies 169,780 620,022 789,802

Arctitectural/Engineering Fees 271,647 341,381 613,027

Consulting and Other Fees 55,000 45,000 100,000

Movable and Other Equipment (not in construction contracts) 2,500,000 500,000 3,000,000

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net interest Expense During Construction Period

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs to be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $ 5,623,112 | § 4,370,188 $ 9,993,299

Sources of Funds:

Cash and Securities $ 5623112 | $ 4,370,188 $ 9,993,299

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Govemmental Appropriations

Grants
Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ 5,623,112 | $ 4,370,188 $ 9,993,299
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type of
gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal
the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include
outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain

the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose_'qh'la';)::! Gross Square Feet

. R New : Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE
Medical Surgical
Intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Totai Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative
Parking
Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical
TOTAL




Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that wiil be or

has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project [ ]Yes X No
Purchase Price: $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
Yes X No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operatir
deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilizatig
specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and Completion Schedules
For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[ 1 None or not applicable [ 1 Preliminary

X Schematics [ ] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): June 30, 2020

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part 1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed. [ |
Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent
“certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to CON
Contingencies

X Project obligation

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X Cancer Registry
X APORS
X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been submitted

X All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of the
project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the latest
Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day totals for each
bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the application being deemed
incomplete.

PLEASE SEE FOLLOWING PAGE

FACILITY NAME: CITY:

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: to:

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Propesed
Beds* Changes* Beds*

Medical/Surgical

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care

Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ((identify)

TOTALS:

/5
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CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are;

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Interstate Alliance, Inc.* in
accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

nan_ | e AR,

Jav n Rowland J. McCl‘ellﬁn

Présigént & Chlef Executive Officer Chairman

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Subscribed and sworn to before me this
this 14™ day of August, 2015 14™ day of August, 2015

FUN UB L\C H g
2 A s é s aL R r 3
“Insert E&Qlegal narm®Y dhe applicant AN UBLIC S
"z. O'iginnsc %\; app "":7):(\‘\% "‘r\e‘s“
LM "":,,OF W-I‘SCOV\\:““

“idanparese™
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CERTIFICATION

| The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Rockford Memorial Hospital* in
accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

éﬂ/}ui 7). M'MQ

Connie M. Vitali, M.D.

Chairman
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me this Subscribed and sworn to before me this
14" day of August, 2015 14" day of August, 2015
I Signature of Notary
Seal s‘\,&f& """ e Seal

LORRIE LEE PIERCE
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public, State of Hlinois
/ My Commission Expires

S July 18, 2017
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in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o]

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Rockford Health System- in
accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Heaith Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

Q"’W /C.ﬁl«/ (onnse 7 Und D

Jayon R. Bea - Connie M Vitali, M.D.
esident & Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before met his

| Subscribed and sworn to before me this
14™ day of August, 2015

14" day of August, 2015

Signature of N¢ :/ ) Signature of Notary
e“‘ «‘a‘ ______ : :,”' ~
Seal ég . ‘.‘(( %, Seal [
/ s ORRIE LEE PIERCE
; V\OTA@}_ < HOFFICIAL SEAL

B Notary Public, State ot litinois

My Commission Expires
/ Y July 18, 2017
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SECTIONIl. DISCONTINUATION

This Section is applicable to any project that involves discontinuation of a health care facility or a category of
service. NOTE: If the project is solely for discontinuation and if there is no project cost, the remaining Sections of

the application are not applicable.
Criterion 1110.130 - Discontinuation

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following mformatnon
GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS j

1. Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that is to be discontinued.

2. ldentify alt of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.

3. Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
4. Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and equipment after the discontinuation occurs.

5. Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical records pertaining to the services being
discontinued, and the length of time the records will be maintained.

6. For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, certification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual questionnaires,
capital expenditures surveys, etc.) will be provided through the date of discontinuation, and that the
required information will be submitted no later than 60 days following the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for the
proposed action. See criterion 1110.130(b) for examples.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

1. Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will not have an adverse
effect upon access to care for residents of the facility's market area.

2. Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or approved
health care facilities (that provide the same services as those being discontinued) located within 45
minutes travel time of the applicant facility.

3. Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or health care facilities located
within 45 minutes fravel time, that indicate the extent to which the applicant's workload will be
absorbed without conditions, limitations or discrimination.

LABPEND -DO
APPLICATION}
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SECTION il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.
Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant during
the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal of the

application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the documentation
provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of this criterion. In such
instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite the project number of the
prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has been previously
provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, to update

and/or clarify data.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the market
area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the project.
[See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s heaith
status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving the
stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being repiaced, inciude repair and

maintenance records.

)




ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities

to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative
settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care rescurces that are available to serve all or a portion of the
population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen altemative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE

PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

Z’?/




SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not excessive.
- This must be a narrative.

2. if the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural
design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE STANDARD | DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD?

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be

provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT. HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD = STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

“APPEND DOCUMENTATION
APPLICATION FORM. ..~ -

o ok Ry et v




UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: NO SHELL SPACE

Provide the following information:
1.

2.

4. Provide:

Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;,

Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed to

occupy the sheli space.

a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed into

operation.

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:

1.

Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the shell
space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service involved.

The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject shell
space) will be submitted; and

The anticipated date when the sheli space will be completed and placed into operation.




SECTION Vii - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

After &dentlfymg the apphcable review
criteria for each category of service mvolved , read the criteria and provide the required information, AS
. APPLICABLE TO THE CRITERIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

A. Criterion 1110.530 - Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive Care
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Medical/Surgical, Obstetric,
Pediatric and/or Intensive Care categories of service must submit the following
information:

2. Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by
action(s):

# Existing ; # Proposed

Category of Service | ~ Beds [ Beds
X Medical/Surgical 223 70
X Obstetric 35 0
X Pediatric 35 0
X Intensive Care 32 4
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required

documentation for the criteria:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA .| Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.530(b)(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 X

(formula calcuiation)
1110.530(b)(2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X

Residents
1110.530(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X

Establishment of Category of Service
1110.530(b)(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - Expansion X

of Existing Category of Service
1110.530(b)(5) ~ Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.530(c)(1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.530(c)(2) - Maldistribution X X
1110.530(c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
1110.530(d)(1) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.530(d)(2) - Documentation X
1110.530(d)(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X

25




APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize |
1110.530(d)(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.530(d)(4) - Occupancy X
110.530(e) - Staffing Availability X X

1110.530(f) - Performance Requirements X X X
1110.530(g) - Assurances X X X

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-ZO, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for funding or
guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from Fitch’s or Standard and
Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirned within the latest 18 month period prior to

the submittal of the application):

e  Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
e  Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
¢  Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility ~ Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIIl. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
_$9,993.299 institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on
any asset from the date of applicant's submission through project
completion;

b) Pledges ~ for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use,
and the estimated time table of receipts;

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (inciuding the debt time period,
variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment
schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project,
including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum
or evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the
bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any
discounting anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified
amount and interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the
expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including
the anticipated interest rate and any conditions associated with the
mortgage, such as, but not limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon
payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property
and provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be
made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the
governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount
and time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will
be used for the project.

$9,993,299 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE




iX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A” Bond rating or better

2. Al of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A

rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS- ATTACHMENT—37 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
! PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM F ce A s

NOT APPLICABLE, A BOND RATING

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the

applicable hospital standards.

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the

applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION-AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN-NUMERICAL 'ORDER AFTER-THE LAST.PAGE OF THE
NEO
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

B.

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the foliowing:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

Conditions of Debt Financing

NOT APPLICABLE, DEBT WILL NOT BE USED

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing wili not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the

following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

zZ?




D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years

following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent

patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

,".APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT' -39, |N NUMERIC SEQUEN'I IAL ORDER ‘AFTER. THE LAST PAGE OF. THE




Xl Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1 1. The project’s material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a cettification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients. Hospital and non-
| hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the Hlinois
Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source" as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031 ]
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2012 2013 2014
Inpatient 882 973 955
Outpatient | 3,287 4,013 5,686
Total 4,169 4,986 6,641
Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient $6,268,048 $7,462,976 $2,456,931
Outpatient $2,695,492 $3,307,849 $2,323,022
Total $8,963,540 |  $10,770,825 $4,779,953
MEDICAID '
Medicaid (# of patients) 2012 2013 2014
Inpatient 2,980 3,130 3,986
Outpatient 29,389 26,658 37,749
Total 32,369 29,788 41,735
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $48,892,458 |  $52,797,975 $63,083,993
Outpatient $10,703,084 |  $11,050,751 $20,629,507
Total $59,595,542 |  $63,848,726 $83,713,500

e




Xil. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in Iitinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care" means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from the
patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE ]
2012 2013 2014
Net Patient Revenue $314,128,727 $314,090,683 $323,042,795
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $28,075,442 $33,923,122 $15,219,396
Cost of Charity Care $8,963,540 $10,770,825 $4,779,953

Note: 2014 reduction in charity care is off-set by increased Medicaid, and is a resuit of the
Implementation of the Affordable Care Act.
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File Number 0215-546-0

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

ROCKFORD MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON DECEMBER 15, 1883, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT

CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 12TH

day of MAY AD. 2015

I i
Authentication #: 1513201892

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com secretary or ATTACHMENT 1

77




File Number 6975-235-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

INTERSTATE ALLIANCE, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 24, 2014, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH
ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF
THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Wher eof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 12TH

day of MAY A.D. 2015

et ¥

93 RGN O

AR
NS
\ 3 \ .. I - ’
SRR g Yo e WAL

Authenticate at: hitp://www.cyberdriveillinois.com secaetary or. ATTACHMENT 1
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]

OFFICE OF THE §

JESSE WHITE o Secretary of State

APRIL 22, 2015 | 6975-235-7

JAVON R BEA
2400 N ROCKTON AVE
ROCKFORD, IL. 61103

RB INTERSTATE ALLIANCE, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

APPLICATION TO ADOPT AN ASSUMED NAME HAS BEEN PLACED ON FILE AND THE
CORPORATION CREDITED WITH THE REQUIRED FEE.

THE DUPLICATE COPY IS ENCLOSED.
SINCERELY,

JESSE WHITE
SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES
CORPORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 7826961

JW:CD

. ATTACHMENT 1

35



L)

oasn

For NFP 104.158/20 (Rev. Aup. 2014
APRLICATION TO ADOP'I! m?f& OR 1cmc.-.l.

an ASSUMED CORFPORATE NAME
Genaral Not For Profit Corparation Act

Secretary of Siate

Department of Business Services
;m s. Sleu:d‘?’..“m 350
2177620520

217-7802-4081

e eyberiveioRom Filed: 412212015 Jesse White Secretary of State ~ ~_MJE.
Payment muet e made by chack of masay onde e
payabia io Secratiary ol

Fifiog tee § 15.9_&@ Fie # LARERBRET © Approved:
——w Bubmit in duplicate ———=— Type of Print clearly in biack ink ———— D¢ not wiits abave this ing ~==—~——

1. Corporate Name: ntersiste Alllaace, Inc.
2. State or Country of Incorporation: liinols
8. Dals incorporated {if an lilinols corparation) or Date Authorized lo Transacl Bueinsss in Kinois (If & lorelgn corporetion):

October 24, 2014_

m No. 4 and No. § if adopting or changing an assumed corporats name.
4, Corporation inters 10 adopt and (o transact business under the assumaed comporate name of:

MereyRookford Hesith System
E. The tigh! to uss the assumed corporete name shail be effective from the date this application Is fied by the Secratary
Oclobar 1 , 2016 - ;
of Slate untll L ;‘my ot the first day of the corporstion's anniversary

month In the naxt year evenly divisible by (ive.

Camplets No. 8 if shanging or canceliing an assumed nurpum name.
8. Corporstion intends to ceass transscting businsas under the assumed corporats name of;

7.mmrdumdeog:‘ﬂonhasmmwsmmwhcﬂamd ¢ duly authorizad officer who affirms, under
penaiiigs of parjury, that the {acts siated herein are true and b & dey y

2015 _intsrstate Allisnce, inc.

[ (et 07 pimy

TK: Tha flling fee to adopt an asaumad corporats name Is $150 if the current ysar ends with & 0 or 5; $120 if the current
mga with & 1 or §; $80 U the curient year ends witha 2 0r 7; set)ilz\.: current year ends with a 3 or 8; or $30
nuummnndlwnhadote

" The fee lor canceliing an assumed corparate nams Is §5,
The fee 10 change an assuinad nams is §5.

Piintad oy authority of tho Siato of Itnale, Septomber 2014 ~ 1 = O 211,)
ATTACHMENT 1
{.
J¢
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File Number 5280-599-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

ROCKFORD HEALTH SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 29, 1982, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL
THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF THIS
STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION
IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH
dayof  JULY  A.D. 2015
\‘\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

s :i: ;‘s:l:‘l:l ‘
W 1 1“ ) e
3 ’
Authentication # 1520900912 verifiable until 07/28/2016 M

Authenticate at: hitp:/Aww.cyberdriveillinois.com
SECRETARY OF STATE
ATTACHMENT 1
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RockrorD HEALTH
Systemt

August 14, 2015

Illinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: RMH Project Property Ownership

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that the current site of Rockford Memorial Hospital, located at 2400 North
Rockton Avenue, Rockford, Illinois, and the proposed Rockford Memorial Hospital-Riverside
Boulevard campus, located to the southeast of the intersection of [-90/39 and East Riverside
Boulevard in Rockford Township, Winnebago County, Illinois, are owned by Rockford

Memorial Hospital.

Sincerely,

Th 7o

Dan Parod
Senior Vice President
Hospital and Administrative Affairs

Rockford Memorial Rockford Health Van Matre HealthSouth
Hospita! Physicians Rehabilitation Hospital
2400 N. Rockton Ave. 2300 N. Rockion Ave. 950 S. Mulford Rd.
Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, IL 61108

(815) 971-5000 (815) 971-2000 (815) 381-8500 ?

ATTACHMENT 2
Visiting Nurses Rockford Memoriai
Association Development Foundation
4223 E. State St. 2400 N. Rockton Ave.
Rockford, IL 61108 Rockford, IL 61103
(815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141



(Ar) jeudsoH

uoneyjiqgeysy
yinosyijeay
JaaeN uep

(Ar) diysssupied

I711 ‘sednjusp
waisAs yijesH
plopjooy

11 “SjomisN
YyijesH
jeuol3ay SHY

‘P11 9duBINSU|

“ou| ‘OINH
aJedAdsN

(A1) P11

paun uosipe

‘uaury aJeoyljeay

—

Auedwon
aouednsuy
alepAdia

JU] ‘SI93IUN|OA JO
UofleId0ssY WalsAg
yyeaH Ay

ATTACHMENT 4

"ou|
‘193Ua) |BIIPSIN
9|jIasauer

yyesH ploppoy | | venepunod *2u| ‘uonepunoy
SHINY/GSH [eydsoH fors
[BLIOWBIA pJeAleH W
R uonetodlo
pJopoy uonepunog suerisAyg sndwe) pajg 3pISIAAY ou| ‘aue) 5u} ‘|eydsoy B o)
JO uoi1e1D0SSY juswdojeaaq sndwe) anuany uoPIoY A wa1sAg
$3SINN SUISIA jelIOWaA paoyy20Y YHeSH pIopiooy 121/dSOH |BLIOWSN pJofyI0Y paisissy AdIsiN plenieH Adlein y3eeH Aslo N

wiAsAS Yyijeay piopdoy

Ui ‘aauel|y A

walSAS YijeaH pioproyAdis

29




ROCKFORD HEALTH
system

August 14, 2015

Ilinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Illinois Executive Order #2005-5
To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that neither the current site of Rockford Memorial Hospital, located at 2400
North Rockton Avenue, Rockford, Illinois, or the proposed Rockford Memorial Hospital-
Riverside Boulevard campus, located to the southeast of the intersection of I-90/39 and East
Riverside Boulevard in Rockford Township, Winnebago County, Illinois, are located within a
special flood hazard area. Further, the projects proposed for these sites, and submitted to the
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board for approval, are in compliance with the
requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2005-5.

Sincerely,
T T
Dan Parod

Senior Vice President
Hospital and Administrative Affairs

ATTACHMENT 5
Rockford Memorial Rockford Health Van Matre HealthSouth Visiting Nurses Rockford Memorial
Hospital Physicians Rehabiiitation Hospital Association Development Foundation
2400 N. Rockton Ave. 2300 N. Rockton Ave. 950 S. Mulford Rd. . 4223 E. State St. 2400 N. Rockton Ave.
Rockford, IL. 61103 Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, IL 61108 Rockford, IL 61108 Rockford, IL 61103

(815) 871-5000 (815) 871-2000 (815) 381-8500 / 0 (815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141




Iilinois Historic
- = Preservation Agency

a > - E FAX (217) 524-7525
1 Old State Capitol Plaza, Springfield, IL 62701-1512 www.illinoishistory.gov
Winnebago County

Rockford

CON - Hospital Renovations, Rockford Memorial Hospital
2400 N. Rockton Ave. -
IHPA Log #036051315

May 29, 2015

Jacob Axel

Axel & Associates, Inc.
675 North Court, Suite 210
Palatine, IL 60067

Dear Mr. Axel:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project
area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of the Illinois State Agency
Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et. seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years
from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5031.

Sincerely,

Foroafy S

Rachel Leibowitz, Ph.D.
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

ATTACHMENT 6

For TTY communication, dial 888-440—96}9}. /t is not a voice or fax line.




PROJECT COSTS AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Project Costs:

Preplanning Costs
evaluation of campus alternatives $150,000

Modernization Contracts

Renovation, per ATTACHMENT 39C* $5,340,470
Contingencies
renovation-related contingency $789,802

Architectural/Engineering Fees

assessments of alternatives $80,000
design services $400,000
governmental agency interaction $40,000
inspections/supervision $50,000
misc./other $43,027
Consulting and Other Fees
CON and permit-related $80,000
interiors/furniture selection $10,000
misc./other $10,000
Movable and Other Equipment
IT-related $2,500,000
Miscellaneous equipment, non-IT $500,000

Sources of Funds:

$150,000

$5,340,470

$789,802

$613,027

$100,000

$3,000,000

All funding for this project will be in the form of cash derived from operations.

*Note: Renovation costs related to Not-for-Profit agencies is limited to the vacating of space,

and does not include subsequent “build-out”.

ATTACHMENT 7
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DISCONTINUATION

Through this Certificate of Need application and the accompanying application
addressing the establishment of a second hospital campus at the intersection of -90/39 and East
Riverside Boulevard (RMH-Riverside) the following categories of service are proposed to be
relocated from Rockford Memorial Hospital to RMH-Riverside, and therefore are classified as
“discontinued” categories of service:

e Obstetrics Beds

e Pediatrics Beds

o NICU

e Open Heart Surgery

e (Cardiac Catheterization

In addition, PET services will be discontinued. Since each of the services proposed to be

discontinued will be relocated to RMH-Riverside, there will be no impact on existing providers.

The proposed discontinuations are a component of a program designed to ensure that

Rockford Memorial Hospital’s traditional patient population will be able to access services in a

contemporary setting.

Each of the services identified above are anticipated to be discontinued upon the opening

of RMH-Riverside.

The re-use of the space used by these services will be finalized as the discontinuation
date nears. ATTACHMENT 9 identifies the amount of space planned to be used, and a summary
of the anticipated re-location of clinical services is included in this application’s Narrative
Description. As discussed elsewhere in this application, it is the intent of the applicants to make

The RMH Clinic Building (approximately 207,000 square feet) available to not-for-profit

community agencies.

ATTACHMENT 10




The proposed project involves no new construction.

Rockford Memorial Hospital-Rockton Avenue will continue to operate as an [DPH-
licensed acute care hospital, and all medical records in the possession of the hospital at the time
of the discontinuation of the above-identified services will be maintained by the RMH, consistent

with all applicable records management requirements.

Each of the services proposed to be discontinued are being discontinued in a manner to
minimize any unnecessary duplication of those services. Each of the services proposed for
discontinuation will be provided at Rockford Memorial Hospital-Riverside. The discontinuation
of the services identified above will not occur without the issuance of a CON Permit to establish
the proposed second hospital campus, as discussed in the Narrative Description section of this

application; and no discontinuation will occur until RMH-Riverside is operational.

Each of the services to be discontinued will be replaced by a similar service at RMH-
Riverside. The table below identifies which area hospitals provide the categories of service
proposed to be discontinued. = As demonstrated in the table, with the exception of NICU

services, each of the categories of service to be discontinued are provided at other hospitals.

Cardiac
M/S OB Peds. iCU NICU OHSurg Cath

Swedish American Hospital X X X X . X X
OSF St. Anthony Med. Ctr. X X X X X X
Swedish American-Belevidere X

FHN Memorial Hospital X X X X
Rochelle Community Hospital X X

Mercy Harvard Hospital X X

In total, upon the opening of the second hospital campus, 109 approved beds will be
eliminated from the IDPH Inventory, which identifies an excess number of beds in each

category, with the exception of ICU.

ATTACHMENT 10
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Requests for impact statements, consistent with the requirements of Section 1110.130,
have been sent to each of the hospitals identified in the table above. Responses not sent directly

to [HFSRB staff will be forwarded.

ATTACHMENT 10
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RoCkrorD HEALTH
_ systemn

July 13, 2015

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

William R, Gorski, M.D,, President & CEQ
SwedishAmerican Medical Center/Belvidere
1625 South State Street

Belvidere, IL, 61008-0000

Re: Proposed Discontinuation of Selected IDPH-Designated Scervices at Rockford Memorial Hospital
and Re-Establishment of these Services at a Second Hospital Campus on the Corner of I-90 and
Riverside Bivd (Winnebago County, IL)

Dear William:

Rockford Memorial Hospital is evaluating the establishment of a second hospital campus on the east side of
Rockford. A number of services would remain at the Rockton Avenue campus, Additionally, Rockford
Memorial Hospital is considering the discontinuation of selected IDPH-designated “categories of services” on
its Rockton Avenue campus in Rockford and relocating them to the second hospital campus. Those services
and the volumes at which they were provided during the past two years at Rockford Memorial Hospital are:

¢  Obstetrics (9,674 patient days)

+ Pediatrics (5,897 patient days)

¢ Level Il nursery (23,501 patient days)

¢ Open Heart Surgery (197 cases)

e Cardiac Catheterization (4,077 procedures)

A Certificate of Need Permit is required to discontinue/relocate the above-identified services, which are
anticipated to be discontinued/relocated in late 2018 or early 2019.

This letter is being sent, consistent with requirements of Section 1110.130, which directs applicants for
projects involving the discontinuation of “categories of services” to invite area providers of those services to
provide, within 15 days, a statement of impact, indicating whether the facility has or will have available
capacity to accommodate a portion or all of the applicant’s experienced caseload, and whether any restrictions
or limitations preclude providing service to residents of the applicant’s market area.

Sincerely,

L

Dan Parod
Senior Vice President
Hospital & Administrative Affairs

Rockford Memorial Rochkford Health Van Matre HealthSouth Visiting Nurses Rockford Memorial
Hosgital Physiclans Rehabiiltation Hospital Assaclation Devetlopment Foundation
2400 N Rockton Ave. 2300 N. Rockton Ave. 950 S Mulford Rd. 4223 E. State St. ATT ACI__]ME&E FL kton Ave.
Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, 1L 61103 Rockford, IL 61108 Rockiord, (L 61108 orti ML 81103
{815) 871-5000 (815) 971-2000 (815} 381-8500 {815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141

AF




26, ROCKFORD HIEALTH

Rockford Memorial

| Systent

July 13, 2015

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Paula Carynski, President

OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center
5666 East State Street

Rockford, 1L, 61108-2425

Re: Proposed Discontinuation of Selected IDPH-Designated Services at Rockford Memorial Hospital
and Re-Establishment of these Services at a Second Hespital Campus on the Corner of I-90 and
Riverside Blvd (Winnebago County, IL)

Dear Paula:

Rockford Memorial Hospital is evatuating the establishment of a second hospital campus on the east side of
Rockford. A number of services would remain at the Rockion Avenue campus. Additionally, Rockford
Memorial Hospital is considering the discontinuation of selected IDPH-designated “categories of services” on
its Rockton Avenue campus in Rockford and relocating them to the second hospital campus. Those services
and the volumes at which they were provided during the past two years at Rockford Memorial Hospital are:

s Obstetrics (9,674 patient days)

s  Pediatrics (5,897 patient days)

¢ Level Il nursery (23,501 patient days)

¢ Open Heart Surgery (197 cases)

s Cardiac Catheterization (4,077 procedures)

A Certificate of Need Permit is required to discontinue/relocate the above-identified services, which are
anticipated to be discontinued/relocated in late 2018 or early 2019,

This letter is being sent, consistent with requirements of Section 1110.130, which directs applicants for
projects involving the discontinuation of “categories of services” to invite area providers of those services to
provide, within {5 days, a statement of impact, indicating whether the facility has or will have available
capacity to accommadate a portion or all of the applicant’s experienced caseload, and whether any restrictions
or limitations preclude providing service to residents of the applicant’s market area.

Sincerely,

| e,

Dan Parod

Senior Vice President

Hospital & Administrative Affairs

Rockford Heafth van Matre HealthSouth Yislting Nurses

Rockford Memorial

2400 N. Rockton Ave.

Hospital Physicians Rehabilitation Hospital Assoctation Development Foundation
2300 N. Rockton Ave. 950 8. Mufford Rd. 4223 E. State St. ATT ACI—IMENq‘N.l}?ckton Ave
Rockiord, - 61103 Rockford, IL 61108 Rockford, lL 61108 Rockford, L 61103

Rackford, L 81103

{81E) B71-5000 (816) 871-2000

(815} 381 -850(%/?

(815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141
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July 13, 2013

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

William R. Gorski, M.D., President & CEQ
Swedish American Hospital

1400 Charles Street

Rockford, IL, 61104-0000

Re: Proposed Discontinuation of Selected IDPH-Designated Services at Rockford Memorial Hospital
and Re-Establishment of these Services at a Second Hospital Campus on the Corner of 1-90 and
Riverside Blvd (Winnebago County, IL)

Dear William:

Rockford Memorial Hospital is evaluating the establishment of a second hospital campus on the east side of
Rockford, A number of services would remain at the Rockton Avenue campus. Additionally, Rockford
Memorial Hospital is considering the discontinuation of selected IDPH-designated “categories of services” on
its Rockton Avenue campus in Rockford and relocating them to the second hospital campus. Those services
and the volumes at which they were provided during the past two years at Rockford Memorial Hospital are:

e Obstetrics (9,674 patient days)

e  Pediatrics (5,897 patient days)

e Level Il nursery (23,501 patient days)

+  Open Heart Surgery (197 cases)

e Cardiac Catheterization (4,077 procedures)

A Cettificate of Need Permit is required to discontinue/relocate the above-identified services, which are
anticipated to be discontinued/relocated in late 2018 or early 2019.

This letter is being sent, consistent with requirements of Section 1110.130, which directs applicants for
prajects involving the discontinuation of “categories of services” to invite area providers of those services to
provide, within 15 days, a statement of impact, indicating whether the facility has or will have available
capacity to accommodate a portion or all of the applicant’s experienced caseload, and whether any restrictions
or limitations preclude providing service to residents of the applicant’s market area.

Sincerely,
Lo Jaer]
Dan Parod

Senior Vice President
Hospital & Administrative Affairs

Rockford Memorial Rockford Health Van Matre HealthSouth Vislting Nurses Rocklord Memorial
Hospliat Physicians Rehabilitation Hospltal Assaclation Davelopment Foundation
2400 M. Rockton Ave. 2300 N, Rockion Ave 950 S, Mulford Rd. 4223 € state St.  ATT ACHNMERN N fpkton Ave
Rockford, . 81103 Rockiord, Il. 61103 Rockford, It. 61108 Rockford, I 61108 Rockford, IL 61103

(816) 971-5000 {816) 971-2000 (816) 381-8500 {815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141
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System

July 13, 2015

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mark J. Batty, CEO

Rochelle Community Hospital
900 North 2nd Street
Rochelie, 1L, 61068-0000

Re: Proposed Discontinuation of Selected IDPH-Designated Services at Rockford Memorial Hospital
and Re-Establishment of these Services at a Second Hospital Campus on the Corner of I-90 and
Riverside Blvd (Winnebago County, IL)

Dear Mark:

Rockford Memorial Hospital is evaluating the establishment of a second hospital campus on the east side of
Rockford. A number of services would remain at the Rockton Avenue campus. Additionally, Rockford
Memorial Hospital is considering the discontinuation of selected IDPH-designated “categories of services™ on
its Rockton Avenue campus in Rockford and relocating them to the second hospital campus. Those services
and the volumes at which they were provided during the past two years at Rockford Memorial Hospital are:

o Obstetrics (9,674 patient days)

¢ Pediatrics (5,897 patient days)

* Level Il nursery (23,501 patient days)

¢ Open Heart Surgery (197 cases)

s Cardiac Catheterization (4,077 procedures)

A Certificate of Need Permit is required to discontinue/relocate the above-identified services, which are
anticipated to be discontinued/relocated in fate 2018 or early 2019,

This letter is being sent, consistent with requirements of Section 1110.130, which directs applicants for
projects involving the discontinuation of “categories of services” to invite area providers of those services to
provide, within 15 days, a statement of impact, indicating whether the facility has or will have available
capacity to accommodate a portion or all of the applicant’s experienced caseload, and whether any restrictions
or limitations preclude providing service to residents of the applicant’s market area.

Sincerely,
/ Qn— W
Dan Parod

Senior Vice President
Hospital & Administrative Affairs

Rockford Memorial Rockford Heaith Van Malre HesithSouth Vislting Nurses Rockford Memorial
Hospital Physicians Rehabititation Hospital Association Pevelopment Foundation
2400 N, Rockion Ave. 2300 N, Rocktan Ave. 850 S. Mulford Rd. 4223 E. State St. ATTACI‘WCT kton Ave.
Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, IL 61103 Rockiord, IL 61108 Rocklord, IL 61108 ford-L 61103
{815} 971-5000 {815} 971-2000 (815) 381-8500 {815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141

S




SWEDISHAMERJCAN fﬁ*‘j
SWEDISHAMERICA =)
A DIVISION OF UW HEALTH _ [&“”})

July 28, 2015
V1A HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Dan Parod

Rockford Memorial Hospital
2400 North Rockton Avenue
Rockford, IL 61103

Re:  Response of SwedishAmerican Medical Center/Belvidere to Impact Letter Request of Rockford
Memorial Hospital

Dear Mr. Parod:

This letter responds to your letter to Dr. William Gorski dated July 13, 2015 and received on July 15, 2015
advising that Rockford Memorial Hospital (“RMH”) intends to establish a second general hospital in Rockford in
addition to the existing RMH general hospital located at 2400 North Rockton Avenue. The letter indicates that
RMH is considering the relocation of service from RMH’s existing facility to the proposed second facility,
including obstetrics, pediatrics, open heart surgery, cardiac catheterization and Level Il nursery.
SwedishAmerican Medical Center/Belvidere (“SAMC/Belvidere), located at 1625 South State Street in
Belvidere, currently provides medical/surgical and emergency department services.

SAMC/Belvidere is located just east of the City of Rockford and the location of the proposed new hospital on the
east side of Rockford would place it closer to SAMC/Belvidere. Due to the limited information provided in your
letter, it is impossible to determine the impact the proposed project would have on SAMC/Belvidere. We are
concerned that the establishment of a fourth hospital in Rockford by RMH, even with the discontinuation of some
services at RMH’s existing facility, would adversely impact utilization at existing facilities. Among other
concerns, it appears that the new hospital would require inclusion of an emergency department but your letter
does not mention such a department or its size and number of stations. Also, we question whether RMH’s current
patient base could support the establishment and operation of a second, new RMH hospital in the Rockford region
and this also raises concerns as to the impact of the proposed project on SAMC/Belvidere.

As your impact July 13th letter does not provide sufficient information for us to fully assess the impact of the
proposed project, we must await further details concerning the project to assess the full impact of the proposed
project on SAMC/Belvidere.

Sincerely,

Don Daniels
Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer

ATTACHMENT 10
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A DIVISION OF UW HEALTH &

Tuly 28, 2015
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Dan Parod

Senior Vice President
Rockford Memorial Hospital
2400 North Rockton Avenue
Rockford, IL. 61103

Re:  Response of SwedishAmerican Hospital to Impact Letter Request of Rockford Memorial Hospital

Dear Mr. Parod:

This letter responds to your letter to Dr. William Gorski dated July 13, 2015 and received on July 15, 2015
advising that Rockford Memorial Hospital (“RMH”) intends to establish a second general hospital in Rockford in
addition to the existing RMH general hospital located at 2400 North Rockton Avenue. The letter indicates that
RMH is considering the relocation of services from RMH’s existing facility to the proposed second facility
including obstetrics; pediatrics, open heart surgery, cardiac catheterization and Level II Nursery.
SwedishAmerican Hospital, located at 1401 East State Street in Rockford, currently provides, among other
services, obstetrics, pediatrics, open heart surgery, cardiac catheterization and Level 1+ nursery.

SwedishAmerican Hospital is located within four miles of RMH’s existing hospital and, while your letter does not
provide an address for the proposed project, the referenced location “on the east side of Rockford” would place
the new facility in very close proximity to SwedishAmerican. Due to the limited information provided in your
letter, it is impossible to determine the impact the proposed project would have on SwedishAmerican Hospital.
For example, your letter does not advise whether the same number of beds, stations and cath labs are proposed to
be established or whether a greater or lesser number will be proposed.

We are concerned that the establishment of a fourth hospital in Rockford by RMH, even with the discontinuation
of some services at the existing facility, would adversely impact utilization of existing facilities. Among other
concerns, it appears that the new hospital would require inclusion of, at the least, an intensive care unit for the
cardiac patients and an emergency department. Also, we question whether RMH’s current patient base could
support the establishment and operation of a second, new RMH hospital in Rockford and this also raises concerns
as to the impact of the proposed project on SwedishAmerican Hospital.

As your July 13th letter of the proposed project does not provide sufficient information for us to fully assess the
impact of the proposed project, we must await further details concerning the project to assess the full impact of
the proposed project on SwedishAmerican Hospital.

Sincerely,

A

Don Daniels
Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer

ATTACHMENT 10




July 27,2015

(Sent via FedEx 8718 0369 2025)

Dan Parod, Senior Vice President
Hospital & Administrative Affairs
Rockford Health System

2400 N. Rockton Avenue
Rockford, IL. 61103

RE: Proposed Discontinuation of Selected IDPH-Designated Services at Rockford Memorial
Hospital and Re-Establishment of Services at a Second Hospital Campus

Dear Mr. Parod:

Thank you for your letter of July 13, 2015 (a copy of which is attached for your convenience)
providing us an opportunity, per 77 IAC 1110.130, to address the impact your proposed project
may have on OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center. We believe the overall project(s) your letter
references may have a negative impact, but would like to note that the impact of discontinuing
the services alone would have no negative impact because we have capacity at our hospital to
absorb the volume in obstetrics, pediatrics, cardiac catheterization and open heart surgery.
Parenthetically, while we do not offer Level III nursery services, discontinuing that service,
without replacing it, may have a negative impact on our community served.

While discontinuing the services referenced above will not have a negative impact on Saint
Anthony’s we are concerned about the impact of the replacement campus you propose, which is -
per your correspondence integral to the discontinuation of services your letter references. The
replacement hospital will necessarily have to be a fully licensed hospital per the Illinois Hospital
Licensing Act. As such, it would be required to operate an emergency department and
presumably will offer laboratory, pharmacy, imaging and pathology services all of which would
be duplicative of services offered at your main campus, Saint Anthony’s and other area
providers. We also have a number of questions that are unanswered. It appears you plan to
discontinue catheterization services at your existing hospital. Does this mean that you would be
unable to provide care to someone who is seen at your emergency department who might require
catheterization for diagnostic or interventional purposes? Would the EMS System be required to
take all patients suffering a possible cardiac event to either Saint Anthony’s or Swedish
American or would your second campus become the primary emergency department among your
proposed two hospitals?

In summary, we believe the overall project may have a negative impact on our services, and most
likely will duplicate existing services. It is difficult to fully understand the extent of the impact

ATTACHMENT 10
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Page 2
July 27, 2015

given the information in your July 13 letter. We look forward to reviewing the Certificate of
Need applications to discontinue your existing hospital services and establish a fourth hospital in

Rockford, lllinois.

Sincerely,

Paula A. Carynski, MS, RN, NEA-BC, FACHE
President
P

cc: David A. Schertz, CEO/OSF HealthCare Northern Region
Courtney Avery, Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board, Springfield, IL

DM_US 62739657-1.T13706.0010 ATTACHMENT 10
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BACKGROUND

MercyRockford Health System includes four hospitals, two in Illinois and two in
Wisconsin:
e Rockford Memorial Hospital
Rockford, IL
IDPH License # 2048

e Mercy Harvard Hospital
Harvard, IL
IDPH License # 0004911

e Mercy Hospital and Trauma Center

Janesville, WI

e Mercy Walworth Hospital and Medical Center
Lake Geneva, W1

ATTACHMENT 11
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340IN. P ille Rd., Ste. 303
MERCYROCKFORD erryvéoeckford, l(le_ 6ill4
Health System 815.971.1000

MercyRockford.org

August 14, 2015

Ms. Courtney Avery
Illinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: MRHS Adverse Actions and Board Access to Information

Dear Ms. Avery:

In accordance with Review Criterion 1110.230.b, Background of the Applicant, this letter is
being submitted to assure the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board that:

1. Interstate Alliance, Inc. d/b/a MercyRockford Health System does not have any adverse
actions against any facility owned and operated by the applicant during the three (3) year
period prior to the filing of this application, and

2. Interstate Alliance, Inc. d/b/a MercyRockford Health System authorizes the State Board
and Agency access to information to verify documentation or information submitted in
response to the requirements of Review Criterion 1110.230.b or to obtain any
documentation or information which the State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this
application.

If we can in any way provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any other
issue relative to this application, please do not hesitate to call me.

Dfesident and CEO

ATTACHMENT 11
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Centegra Hospital Woodstock

+.CentegraHealthSystem 3701 Doty Road

Woodstock, I 60098

July 28, 2015

Dan Perod

SVP, Hospital and Administrative Affairs
Rockford Heath System

2400 North Rockton Avenue

Rockford, IL 61103

Dear Mr. Perod;

We received your letter dated July 13, 2015 asking us to assess the impact of your
proposal to discontinue the open heart and cardiac catheterization category of service
at Rockford Memorial Hospital and to re-establish the services at a second hospital
campus at corner of 1-90 and Riverside Blvd to Centegra Hospital — Woodstock.

Centegra Hospifal - Woodstock does not provide open heart or cardiac catheterization
services.

Your letter does not provide sufficient information to assess the impact of the other
clinical services to be provided at the proposed project on our facility. | respectively

request that you provide us with additional information:
* Projected geographic service area and other clinical services to be provided at

the new second hospital campus.
e The street address of the new facility.

Thank you,

kv

“Sheila Senn, PsyD
SVP and COO, Centegra Hospitals — Woodstock and Huntley

cc: Courtney Avery, Administrator, lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

Michael S. Eesley, CEO, Centegra Health System
Jason Sciarro, President and COO, Centegra Health System

ATATCHMENT 10
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¥ The Joint Commission

April 20, 2015

Gary E. Kaatz Joint Commission ID #: 7418

President and CEO Program: Hospital Accreditation

Rockford Memorial Hospital Accreditation Activity: 60-day Evidence of
2400 North Rockton Avenue Standards Compliance

Rockford, IL 61103 Accreditation Activity Completed: 04/14/2015
Dear Mr. Kaatz:

The Joint Commission would like to thank your organization for participating in the accreditation process. This
process is designed to help your organization continuously provide safe, high-quality care, treatment, and services
by identifying opportunities for improvement in your processes and helping you follow through on and
implement these improvements. We encourage you to use the accreditation process as a contimmous standards
compliance and operational improvement tool.

The Joint Commission is granting your organization an accreditation decision of Accredited for all services
surveyed under the applicable manmual(s) noted below:

nsive A i r Hospital
This accreditation cycle is effective beginning January 11, 2014. The Joint Commission reserves the right to

shorten or lengthen the duration of the cycle; however, the certificate and cycle are customarily valid for up to 36
months.

Please visit Quality Check® on The Joint Commission web site for updated information related to your
accreditation decision.

We encourage you to share this accreditation decision with your organization’s appropriate staff, leadership, and
goveming body. You may also want to inform the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), state or
regional regulatory services, and the public you serve of your organization’s accreditation decision.

Please be assured that The Joint Commission will keep the report confidential, except as required by law. To
ensure that The Joint Commission’s information about your organization is always accurate and current, our
policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of your organization or the health
care services you provide.

Sincerely,

Dt (B,

Mark G.Pelletier, RN, MS
Chief Operating Officer
Division of Accreditation and Certification Operations

ATTACHMENT 11
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PURPOSE OF PROJECT

The purpose of the three inter-dependent projects addressed in this Certificate of Need
application and the accompanying applications, 1s to provide for the continued delivery of
needed health care services to the residents of the communities traditionally served by Rockford
Memorial Hospital (“RMH?”), and to support this goal through the operating of contemporary
facilities. By doing so, the applicants will be providing health services that improve the health
care and well-being of the market area population to be served. Through the projects, the
applicants will be addressing the facility-related shortcomings of RMH, caused primarily by the

facility’s age.
The table on the following page provides a patient origin analysis of all patients

(excluding admissions to the Level I nursery) admitted to RMH in 2014, identifying each ZIP

Code contributing a minimum of 0.5% of the hospital’s admissions during that period.

ATTACHMENT 12




ZIP
Code
61103
61101
61102
61115
61111
61107
61104
61109
61108
61073
61114
61032
61008
61072
61088
61080
61065
61063
61010
61024
61081
61021
61068
61061
61342
61054
61019
61071
53511

Community
Rockford
Rockford
Rockford
Machesney Park
Loves Park
Rockford
Rockford
Rockford
Rockford
Roscoe
Rockford
Freeport
Belvidere
Rockton
Winnebago
South Beloit
Poplar Grove
Pecatonia
Byron
Durand
Sterling
Dixon
Rochelle
Oregon
Mendota
Mount Morris
Davis
Rock Falls
Beloit, Wis.
other, <0.5%

% of
Adm
13.3%
11.8%
6.5%
6.1%
5.1%
4.7%
4.1%
4.0%
3.7%
3.4%
3.2%
2.8%
2.4%
2.1%
1.8%
1.7%
1.2%
1.1%
1.1%
1.0%
1.0%
0.9%
0.8%
0.8%
0.8%
0.6%
0.6%
0.6%
0.5%
12.4%

Cum.

%
13.3%
25.1%
31.5%
37.6%
42.7%
47 4%
51.5%
55.5%
59.2%
62.6%
65.8%
68.6%
71.1%
73.2%
74.9%
76.6%
77.8%
78.9%
80.0%
80.9%
81.9%
82.8%
83.6%
84.5%
85.3%
85.9%
86.5%
87.1%
87.6%

100.0%

Z/b
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As discussed in other sections of this application, the three inter-dependent projects
propose a redistribution of inpatient and outpatient services between RMH-Riverside and RMH-
Rockton Avenue campuses to ensure access to services, while limiting unnecessary duplication.
Due to the close proximity of the two sites, and because of the “split” of services, the
communities served by each hospital campus is anticipated to vary only slightly. When
combined, however, the patient origin following the completion of the projects is anticipated to

remain very similar to the 2014 patient origin, with one exception.

One of the goals for the 2015 formation of MercyRockford Health System was to
centralize specialty services. These specialty services are intended to be located at RMH-
Riverside, because of its location on I-90/39, which links the traditional service areas of
Rockford Health System and Mercy Alliance, Inc. As a result, it is anticipated that selected
patients, who have traditionally been referred from Mercy’s Wisconsin service area to Madison
or Milwaukee, will be referred to RMH-Riverside due to its convenient location. As noted in the

table above, few patients from Wisconsin have traditionally been admitted to RMH.

Among the goals of the projects are improved patient satisfaction with the facilities and
increased access to MercyRockford Health System services for patients from Wisconsin. The

achievement of these goals will be measurable during the first year following the projects’

completion.

ATTACHMENT 12
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ALTERNATIVES

The applicants have concurrently submitted three inter-dependent Certificate of Need
applications, addressing two sites, but with a common purpose. The primary purpose of the
projects is to provide high quality health care services to the patient population that has

traditionally looked to Rockford Memorial Hospital (“RMH”) for such services, and to do so in a

contemporary setting.

Effective January 1, 2015, Rockford Health System, the parent of RMH, joined
MercyRockford Health System to establish a four-hospital system, with two hospitals in Illinois
and two in southern Wisconsin. Two important objectives for the new system are the
centralization of specialized services, such as perinatology and neonatology, on one campus, and
to continue to serve those patient populations that the respective hospitals have been privileged

to serve for many years. These goals are incorporated into the evaluation of alternatives.

A number of alternatives, all focusing on the age of RMH’s physical plant and the
capacity to continue to provide services consistent with industry standards on its current campus
were evaluated, including:

1. the construction of a new hospital on the current RMH campus

2. the total renovation of RMH’s existing facility

3. the abandonment of the existing RMH campus, and the relocation of all
services to another Rockford-area site

4. the construction of a hospital in southern Wisconsin

5. the continued use of certain parts of the existing hospital, coupled with the

relocating of selected services to a second site in the Rockford area.

ATTACHMENT 13
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Alternative 1. Construct a New Hospital on the Current Rockford Memorial Hospital Site

The applicants commissioned AECOM, a firm with all required expertise, to evaluate the
current RMH site, to determine if a new hospital could be constructed on the site, concurrent to
the continued operation of the existing hospital. The determination was made that this
alternative could not be accomplished in a reasonable fashion. Construction would require a
phased program, involving demolition as well as construction, over a 6-8 year period, and with
significant disruption to ongoing operations. The estimated project cost of replacing RMH on-
site 1s $625-$675M. The quality of care associated with this alternative would be similar to that
of the proposed project, the operating costs would be slightly less, and overall access in RMH’s

service areawould be compromised with the operation of a single Emergency Department.

Alternative 2. Total Renovation of Rockford Memorial Hospital

An architectural and engineering evaluation of the current physical plant was conducted,
and the determination was made that while some of the hospital’s newer buildings could be
renovated for continued use, given the ages of the buildings and the associated cost of doing so,

this altemative did not appropriately address the purpose of the project.

Due primarily to the age of the hospital and the design and construction standards that
were in place at the time of construction (generally 1954-1975), even with extensive renovation,
many contemporary standards could not be met. Examples of such include: ADA/ANSI
standards that cannot be met, room heights that limit the installation of equipment, undersized
elevators, and double-loaded corridors on nursing units that result in an inability to re-design

units in an efficient and contemporary fashion.

The project costs associated with this alternative are estimated to be $425-$475M, with
the acknowledgement that numerous facility deficiencies, as discussed above, cannot be
corrected. The operating costs associated with this project are anticipated to be similar to those
of the proposed project, given that the mechanical systems associated with a renovated building
would continue to be less efficient than those of a new building, and that the staffing costs would
be slightly lower, due to eliminated duplication. The quality of care to be provided in

conjunction with this alternative was anticipated to be virtually identical to that of the proposed

ATTACHMENT 13
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project, and access to care was also viewed as being similar to that of the proposed project, given

the existing site’s proximity (14 minutes) to the proposed site on [-90/39 and Riverside

Boulevard.

Alternative 3, Relocating Entire Hospital

The total relocation of RMH to another site in the Rockford area was dismissed for two
primary reasons. First, the applicants believe that the retaining of selective inpatient and
outpatient services, and particularly a comprehensive Emergency Department, on the current
RMH site would benefit the residents of the West Side of Rockford, which is core to the
hospital’s mission. Second, portions of the existing physical plant can continue to be used, with
renovation, for inpatient and outpatient services. This alternative would add approximately
$40M in capital costs to the proposed project. These costs would be minimally offset by the
staffing costs associated with the operating of two hospital facilities, as is being proposed. This
alternative would compromise access to services, and particularly emergency services, if it were

selected, and would result in the same level of quality of care as is anticipated under the

proposed project.

Alternative 4. Relocating to Southern Wisconsin

The construction of a new hospital could be accomplished on land owned by Mercy
Health System (a member of MercyRockford Health System) adjacent to 1-90/39 in southern
Wisconsin. The benefit of doing so is the speed at which construction could be initiated, since
Wisconsin does not require a CON-type review for such projects. While, and as discussed
above, one of the purposes of the project is to centralize specialty services, which could be
accomplished at a Wisconsin site, accessibility for Rockford residents (and traditional RMH
patients residing to the south and west of Rockford) would be compromised. Although this is the
most expeditious approach, it is not preferred since it does not meet all of the applicants’
objectives. Depending on the scope of the project, the capital and operating costs would be
similar to either the proposed project or Alternative 4, above. The quality of services to be

provided would be identical to that of the proposed project and other alternatives.
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Alternative 5. Continued Use of RMH and the Relocating of Selected Services to a

Second Site in the Rockford Area

This alternative represents the proposed project, and was selected for a variety of reasons:

1) it ensures the provision of high quality services in a contemporary setting, 2) it’s dual-site
approach maximizes accessibility to services, and particularly those of an urgent nature through
the operation of two Emergency Departments, 3) it allows for the continued use of newer parts of
RMH for traditional hospital services, 4) it provides space to be made available to not-for-profit
agencies and organizations, 5) it minimizes unnecessary duplication, and 6) it is a cost-effective

approach to addressing the need to provide high quality accessible services to RMH’s entire

service area in a contemporary setting.
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SIZE

Through the proposed project, the scope of clinical services at RMH-Rockton Avenue
will be significantly reduced. A goal of the facility planning process is to have functions remain
in their current locations, to the extent practical. In some instances, such as the hospital’s 20-bed
AMI, unit no capital costs/renovation are required to continue the units’ operation, and the
entirety of their current space will be used. In other instances, such as imaging and pharmacy,
the amount of future space required for these departments to support anticipated service volumes
will be smaller than the space currently required. In most such cases, the decision has been made
to retain their current location in the hospital, rather than to incur the capital costs associated

with the relocating of a department, simply for purposes of downsizing to [HFSRB standards.

Departments/services that will continue in operation, but will not be incurring any capital

costs associated with this project or changes to the approved number of beds, are not addressed

in this application.

The hospital’s current physical plant is approximately 1,000,000 square feet in size.
Upon the completion of the project, approximately 700,000 square feet will continue to be used
for hospital functions, approximately 207,000 square feet will be re-purposed for use by not-for-
profit community agencies and organizations, and approximately 76,000 square feet will be
sealed off, with determinations related to re-purposing being made at a later time. Preliminary
conversations have been held with a number of community agencies and organizations about

relocating to vacated space, and an interest in doing so has been identified. Those discussions

will continue.

The demolition of hospital buildings is not being contemplated at this time.

ATTACHMENT 14




As a result of the space-use plan discussed above, and particularly the applicants’

decision to not relocate functions simply to align with [HFSRB standards, the allocated space is

reasonable and not excessive.

PROPOSED STATE MET
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE DGSF STANDARD DIFFERENCE STANDARD?
Medical/Surgical 44,016 46,200 (2,184) YES
ICU 5,586 2,740 2,846 NO
Surgery 21,670 11,000 10,670 NO
PACU/Recovery 7,995 4,600 3,395 NO
Emergency Department 15,000 15,300 (300) YES
Imaging 23,774 5,800 17,974 NO

ATTACHMENT 14

L7




PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Anticipated utilization is generally based on the historical utilization of Rockford
Memorial Hospital (RMH), recognizing that the required facilities/equipment for some services
(such as pediatrics, obstetrics-related services, NICU, cardiac catheterization, and open heart
surgery) will be provided only at RMH-Riverside, while the other services will be provided at
both RMH-Rockton Avenue and RMH-Riverside. Utilization impacted by the distribution of
Medical/Surgical beds and ICU beds, such as general surgery is based on the proposed bed
distribution and the anticipated location of medical and surgical specialties and specialists’

offices. Please sece ATTACHMENTS 20 and 34 for additional discussion of the rationale

supporting the projections.

The proposed project includes eight clinical services for which the IHFSRB has adopted

utilization standards, and the project, as proposed, meets each of those standards.

The required table, identifying historical utilization (RMH) and projected utilization
(RMH-Rockton Avenue) is provided at the end of this ATTACHMENT.

Medical/Surgical Beds

Rockford Memorial Hospital is approved to operate 223 Medical/Surgical beds and is
proposing to reduce that number to 154, with 84 beds to be located at RMH-Riverside and 70
beds to be maintained at RMH-Rockton Avenue. Bed utilization during the past year confirms
that the demand for the proposed number of beds exists, and service areca demographics suggest

that demand will increase as a result of an aging service area population. Further, the 120
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Medical/Surgical beds that would result from a simple application of the 85% occupancy rate

target, to the 2014 inpatient Medical/Surgical days, is clearly inadequate to meet the hospital’s

historical demand for Medical/Surgical beds. This 1s supported by a number of factors:

1)

2)

3)

In 2013-2014, Rockford Memorial Hospital provided an average of 38,042
Medical/Surgical inpatient days of care (midnight census), yielding an average daily
census (ADC) of 104.2 patients, and a “need” for 123 beds, based on the 85% target
occupancy rate. However, in addition to the inpatients, an average of 6.7 observation
patients per day occupied beds on a Medical/Surgical unit in 2014, resulting in a
combined ADC of 110.9 patients, which would support a “need” for 131
Medical/Surgical beds (110.9 + .85).

During 2014, on 113 days, the midnight census exceeded the number of
Medical/Surgical beds (131) that would be justified by the 110.9 average daily

census, primarily due to day-of-the-week and seasonal fluctuations. Operating
without any available Medical/Surgical beds 31% of the time is unacceptable, and a
disservice to the community. Had only the proposed 154 Medical/Surgical beds been
available at RMH in 2014, the hospital would have been at 100% occupancy 15 days.

Surgical patients are now, in most instances, admitted to the hospital on the morning
of surgery, rather than the day before. As a result, midnight census---a measure that
has been used for decades---is no longer a reasonable basis on which to gauge actual
bed utilization. In fact, mid-day census typically exceeds midnight census by
approximately 20%. As a result, while the midnight ADC of 107.9 patients would
“justify” 127 Medical/Surgical beds based on the 85% target utilization level, true
bed need, based on actual usage, is approximately 20% higher---in the 150-160 range.
As identified above, the applicants are proposing to provide a combined total of 154
Medical/Surgical beds at its two hospital sites. This approach adheres to the
THFSRB’s methodology, while addressing bed need in a reasonable fashion.
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4) Unlike some hospitals, a separate observation unit will not be developed at RMH-
Riverside, since under this project observation patients will continue to occupy
Medical/Surgical beds. A small (16 bed) observation unit will be developed at RMH-
Rockton Avenue, with the primary purpose of that unit being to hold and observe
patients, while awaiting a decision on whether to transfer the patient to RMH-

Riverside for services not provided at RMH-Rockton Avenue.

Based on the above analysis provided above, the applicants believe that the proposed 154
beds represents a conservative approach, given historical demand and the patient population to
be served. The hospital’s service area, and particularly Winnebago County, is aging, which will
lead to higher admission rates and longer lengths of stay, resulting in an increased demand for
beds. Although, for the period 2013-2023, the population of Winnebago County is anticipated to
remain relatively constant (a projected decrease of 0.5%), the 65+ population of the county is
projected to increase by 9.4%. The impact that the “aging” of Winnebago County’s population
will have on the demand for Medical/Surgical services is documented in the IHFSRB’s Jnventory
of Health Care Facilities and Need Determinations, which identifies Health Planning Area B-
01’s Medical/Surgical use rate for the 75+ age group as 2.0488 and that of the 65-74 age group
as 1.0278, both significantly higher than the 0.4174 use rate of the 45-64 population.

ICU Beds

A 4-bed ICU, intended to primarily support the RMH-Rockton Avenue Emergency
Department, will be provided. The proposed ICU represents the minimum-sized unit in order to
meet review criterion 1110.330.g; and, in the view of the applicants, is required to appropriately

support a comprehensive Emergency Department.
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Emergency Department

RMH-Rockton Avenue will operate a comprehensive Emergency Department (ED),
consisting of 17 treatment stations. Six of the treatment rooms will be equipped as trauma
rooms. In 2014, Rockford Memorial Hospital treated 54,338 ED patients from throughout its
service area. Based on the origin of RMH’s ED patients and an assessment of the diagnoses
treated in the ED, it is anticipated that approximately 32,600 patients will seek services in the

RMH-Rockton Avenue ED during the second year following the proposed project’s completion.

Surgery

RMH-Rockton Avenue will operate a 4-operating room surgical suite, using four of the
hospital’s twelve existing operating rooms. FEach of the operating rooms will function as a
general operating room, available for all specialties, with the exception of cardiovascular surgery
and urological surgery, which will not be performed at the hospital. Currently, approximately
64% of the cases performed at RMH are performed on an outpatient basis. This percentage is
anticipated to increase slightly at RMH-Rockton Avenue, to approximately 70%. The amount of
surgery performed at RMH-Rockton Avenue and RMH-Riverside, combined, is not anticipated
to change appreciably from the 20,607 hours experienced in 2014. It is anticipated that
approximately 4,500 hours of OR time at RMH-Rockton Avenue will be utilized (including
room “turnover”) during the first year following the project’s completion, and that approximately

5,000 hours will be used the following year.

Other Services

The remaining services identified in the table below, general radiology, CT, MRI and
ultrasound are all basic imaging modalities appropriate to a hospital having the anticipated
number of both ED visits and inpatient admissions projected for RMH-Rockton Avenue.
Consistent with THFSRB practices, since only one piece of equipment is being proposed for each

of the modalities, the minimum utilization standards are not applicable.
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2014

Dept./ Historical PROJECTED STATE MET
Service Utilization* UTILIZATION* STANDARD STANDARD?
(Patient Days) (patient days)
(TREATMENTS) YEAR1 YEAR2

M/S (days) 37,199 16,500 16,500 13,414 YES
ICU (days) 6,211 850 850 658 YES
Emergency
Dept. 54338 32,000 32,600 32,001 YES
Surgery (hrs) 20,607 4,500 5,000 4,501 YES
General R & F 43,792 8,800 8,800 NA NA
CT 17,861 2,900 2,900 NA NA
MRI 7,142 1,650 1,650 NA NA
Ultrasound 10,227 700 700 NA NA

“Historical utilization for RMH .and projected utilization for Rockton Avenue Campus
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CATEGORY OF SERVICE MODERNIZATION-MEDICAL/SURGICAL BEDS

As a component of the proposed project, three of the newest Medical/Surgical units at
RMH-Rockton Avenue will be renovated, primarily to address the units’ being “dated” due to
their age. These three units are designated as B-4, D2 and D3, and upon the completion of the

project, will house 70 Medical/Surgical beds, located in private rooms.

It is anticipated that the Medical/Surgical Beds will operate at or above the target

occupancy rate.
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CATEGORY OF SERVICE MODERNIZATION-ICU BEDS

As a component of the proposed project, the existing 12-bed surgical ICU located on the
first floor of the hospital will be renovated, and converted to and operated as a 4-bed

medical/surgical ICU.

1t is anticipated that the ICU will operate at or above the target occupancy rate.
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PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

Upon the completion of the proposed project, RMH-Rockton Avenue will operate 70
Medical/Surgical beds, and an additional 84 Medical/Surgical beds will be located at RMH-
Riverside. In addition, four ICU beds will be maintained at RMH-Rockton Avenue, and 26 ICU
beds will be located at RMH-Riverside. The two campuses will operate under the same licensed

entity, Rockford Memorial Hospital.
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Any .
Rockrorp HEALTH
system

August 14, 2015

Illinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Compliance with IHFSRB’s Second Year Target Utilization Rate

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is being written for inclusion in the Certificate of Need applications addressing the
establishment of a new hospital on Rockford Memorial Hospital’s property located at the intersection of
1-90/39 and East Riverside Boulevard in Rockford Township, Winnebago County, Illinois, and the
modernization of Rockford Memorial Hospital’s current campus, located at 2400 North Rockton Avenue,
in Rockford, Illinois. Please be advised that it is my expectation and understanding that by the second
year following the projects’ completion, each of the IDPH-designated categories of service addressed in
the filed Certificate of Need applications will be operating at the [HFSRB’s target utilization rate, and that
they will, at minimum, maintain this level of utilization thereafter.

Sincerely,
T2 T/
Dan Parod

Senior Vice President
Hospital and Administrative Affairs

STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

BE IT KNOWN, that, on the 14™ day of August, 2015, before me personally came Dan Parod,
SVP, Hospital and Administrative Affairs, who executed the foregoing instrument, and he acknowledged
to me that he executed the same.

v .
OFFICIAL SEAL
JULIE A PETERSON ) K
(N} .
/

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 12/12/2015

) .
Ngfary Public
Rockford Memerial Rockford Health Van Matre HealthSouth Visiting Nurses, Mz{ rd Memorial
Hospitai Physicians Rehabilitation Hospital Association ATTACHME t Foundation
2400 N. Rockton Ave. 2300 N. Rockton Ave. 950 8. Mulford Rd. 4223 E. State St. 2400 N. Rockton Ave.

Rockford, I 61103 Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, IL ((? Rockford, IL 61108 Rockford, IL. 61103
(815) 971-5000 (815) 971-2000 (815) 381-880 (815) 971-3550 (815) 971-4141




CLINICAL AREAS OTHER THAN CATEGORIES OF SERVICE

Rockford Memorial Hospital-Rockton Avenue will provide a broad variety of clinical
services that are not identified by IDPH as categories of service, but have target utilization levels
identified in Section 1110, APPENDIX B. These clinical areas, as identified in the required
table below, are consistent with the mission of the hospital and the anticipated utilization of the

services.

# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Room Key Rooms
Emergency Dept. 31 17
Convenient Care 10 8
Surgery 12 4
General R& F 5 1
CcT 3 1
MRI 3 1
Ultrasound 3 1

The primary purpose of the services in the table above, as is the case with RMH-Rockton
Avenue, in general, is to provide needed services to the residents of the hospital’s service area, as

identified in ATTACHMENT 12.

The physical size and historical and projected utilization for each of the clinical areas are
provided in ATTACHMENTS 14 and 15, respectively. In nearly every case, the area currently
assigned to the clinical service will continue to be used, though in many cases, the size of the
area exceeds the standard. The decision to do so is reasonable, and is being done to reduce
renovation costs. For example, RMH’s existing imaging department consists of 17,526 square

feet and 23 rooms. Upon the completion of the proposed project, four of the seven current
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imaging modalities will be provided in a total of four rooms. The imaging department will,

however, continue to occupy its current 17,526 square foot location.

Emergency Department

The Emergency Department will consist of 17 stations, and the department will be

classified as a “comprehensive” Emergency Department. Ten additional stations will be located

in the Emergency Department at RMH-Riverside.

In 2014, 54,338 patients were treated in RMH’s ED, supporting a “need” for 28 stations.
For planning purposes, utilization at the two departments, combined, is projected to remain at the
current 54,300 patient level. It is estimated that approximately 32,600 of those patients will seek
services at the RMH-Rockton Avenue ED during each of the second year following the project’s

completion. The proposed 17 stations are supported by the projected utilization.

Convenient Care Center

The Convenient Care Center, which operates as a “walk-in” clinic, will be re-located
from the clinic building to the hospital, occupying a portion of the current Emergency
Department. During 2014, 14,248 patients were treated in the Convenient Care Center, and

utilization is anticipated to remain at that level. Eight stations will be provided.

Surgery
The surgical suite will be reduced from twelve to four operating rooms, consistent with

the patient population anticipated to be treated at RMH-Rockton Avenue. All four of the ORs
will function as general operating rooms. In addition, a ten-OR suite will be provided at RIMH-

Riverside, including one room, each, designated for cardiovascular and urological procedures.

The amount of surgery performed at RMH-Rockton Avenue and RMH-Riverside,
combined, is not anticipated to change appreciably from the 20,607 hours experienced in 2014.
It is anticipated that approximately 4,500 hours of OR time at RMH-Rockton Avenue will be
utilized during the first year following the project’s completion, and that approximately 5,000

hours will be utilized the following year.
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Diagnostic Imaging

The diagnostic imaging department will consist of the four modalities identified in the
table presented earlier in this ATTACHMENT, and is intended to serve RMH-Rockton Avenue’s
inpatients, outpatients and patients of the physicians and agencies that will be located on the

RMH-Rockton Avenue campus.

One room will be provided for each of the modalities, with the following anticipated
utilization in the second year following the project’s completion:
o General Radiology and Fluoroscopy: 8,800 procedures
o CT:2900
e MRI: 1,650
e Ultrasound: 700
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ch Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
Rockford Health System:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rockford Health System and
Affiliated Corporations (the "System"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and the results of their operations, of changes in net
assets and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles.generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the
System’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations at December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years

then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

‘Quu mwwnésoﬁ«b Lep

March 27, 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, One North Wacker, Chicago, IL 60606 ATTACHMENT 36
T: (312) 298 2000, F: (312) 298 2001, www.pwc.com/us
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short term investments
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts for 2014 - $14,069 and 2013 - $22,772
Other receivables
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Inventories
Prepaid expense and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, non-current
Board-designated and trustee held investments
Donor-restricted and endowment funds

Total assets limited as to use, non-current
Property, plant and equipment, net
Investments in joint ventures
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenues
Due to third-party payors

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Accrued liabilities under self-insurance program
Accrued pension
Accrued postretirement medical benefits
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2014 2013
45,085 $ 46,244
23,214 23,281
64,971 66,020

5,686 6,636
11,304 11,390
8,770 8,265
3,945 3,737
162,975 165,573
193,873 194,556
3,808 3,751
197,681 198,307
145,165 141,426
10,225 9,258
31,807 28,166
547,843 $ 542,730
3626 % 3,200
13,460 15,354
51,387 45,595
248 320
14,530 13,249
83,251 77,718
85,691 88,071
51,219 51,944
18,175 2,844
7,277 7,363
12,116 11,013
257,729 238,953
267,816 281,934
13,866 13,5645
8,432 8,298
290,114 303,777
547,843 $ 542,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Revenues
Net patient service revenue
Provision for doubtful patient accounts
Total net patient service revenue
Provider tax and other provider payments
Other operating revenues and net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue

Expenses

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Supplies

Purchased services and professional fees
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Insurance

Provider tax assessment
Interest

Other

Total expenses
Operating income

Nonoperating gains (losses)
Investment income

Change in fair market value of swap
Other, net

Excess of revenues over expenses

2014 2013
398753 $ 383,175
(13,210) _ (25,082)
385,543 358,093
27,858 25,160
28,412 45,660
441,813 428,913
211,380 198,618
37,291 41,799
63,844 63,286
72,505 69,585
23,546 22,565
141 131
12,902 9,834
12,096 12,254
2,193 2,272
7,746 7,906
443,644 428,250
(1,831) 663
5,659 15,938
(38) 1,764

723 800
4513 $ 19,165

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

2014 2013
Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 4513 % 19,165
Pension adjustment (19,325) 21,745
Postretirement medical benefit adjustment 575 1,381
Net assets released from restriction for capital 119 20
(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets (14,118) 42,311
Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions 781 858
Unrealized gains on investments, net 310 442
Net change in beneficial interest in trusts (18) 677
Net assets released from restriction (752) (555)
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 321 1,422
Permanently restricted net assets
Net change in beneficial interest in trusts 134 470
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 134 470
(Decrease) increase in net assets (13,663) 44,203
Net assets at beginning of year 303,777 259,574
Net assets at end of year : $ 290,114 % 303,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
(Decrease) increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
and cash equivalents provided by operating activities
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments
Equity gains in joint ventures
Unrealized (gain) loss on interest rate swap
Net pension and postretirement medical benefit adjustment
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Loss on disposal of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities
Increase in patient accounts receivable, net
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in deferred revenues
Increase (decrease) in due to third-party payors
Decrease in accrued liabilities under self-insurance program
Net change in other assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales of investments
Acquisition of business

Net cash (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on long-term debt
Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

Property and equipment purchases accrued at year-end
Property and equipment purchases through capital lease

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013

$ (13,663) $ 44203
(5,782) (28,664)
(3,265) (3,344)
38 (1,764)
18,750 (23,126)
23,546 22565

13,351 25213

641 266
(12,302) (20,708)
4112 (6,651)
(72) (126)
1,281 (246)
(725) (3,465)

(530) 5403

25,380 9,556
(27,527) (16,451)
(233,043) (351,943)
239,340 355,063
(2,000) -
(23,230) (13,331)
(3,309) (3,368)
(3,309) (3,368)
(1,159) (7,143)

46,244 53,387

$ 45085 $ 46,244
$ 2140 $ 2,247
$ 501 § 287
$ 1,380 §$ -
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

1. Organization and Nature of Operations

Rockford Health System (RHS) consists of affiliated corporations, which include Rockford Memorial
Hospital (the "Hospital"), Rockford Health Physicians (RHPH), Visiting Nurses Association of the
Rockford Area (VNA), Rockford Memorial Development Foundation (RMDF), Rockford Health
System Ventures, LLC (RHSV), and Rockford Health Insurance Ltd. (RHIL) (collectively the
“System”).

RHS is the sole corporate member of the Hospital, RHPH, and VNA, all of which are lllinois not-for-
profit corporations previously determined by the Internal Revenue Service to be exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and the sole
shareholder of RMDF, an lllinois not-for-profit corporation previously determined by the Internal
Revenue Service to be exempt from federal income taxes under Section 509(a)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes related to these entities has been
made. RHS and its affiliated corporations operate in northern lllinois.

The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, and emergency care services to area residents. RHPH
provides physician and ambulatory care services at several sites. VNA provides home health
nursing services and rents medical equipment to area residents. RMDF is organized to promote
education and scientific and charitable health care activities. RHSV is a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Hospital and was created to manage the organization’s investments in joint ventures. RHIL is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Hospital and is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda. RHIL
provides the affiliated corporations with excess professional and general liability insurance.

Effective January 1, 2015, the System completed a merger with Mercy Health System of Janesville,
Wisconsin. The Boards of Directors of the two organizations approved the creation of the new, yet
unnamed heaith system on October 23, 2014. The merger was granted approval by the lllinois
Health Facilities and Services Review Board on December 16, 2014.

The new combined system operates five hospitals, employs more than 550 physicians, with
approximately 7,500 employees and provides outpatient service in more than 80 centers of care. It
continues to operate as a not-for-profit organization with a charitable mission to provide excellent
health care services.

Operations of the new system will be guided by a nine-member board with four representatives
each from Mercy Health System and Rockford Health System as weill as the current CEO of Mercy
Health System.

The assets of the charitable foundations of the two organizations will remain separate, to be used
to support the facilities and operations where the gifts were made.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“generally accepted accounting
principles”). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all of the entities
outlined above. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
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expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant estimates are made in the areas of patient accounts receivable, investments, accruals
for settlements with third-party payors, reserves for losses and expenses related to health care
professional and general liabilities, and risks and assumptions for measurement of pension and
postretirement medical liabilities.

Risks and Uncertainties

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty related to
changes in the value of investment securities, it is possible that changes in risks in the near term
would materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets and the
consolidated statements of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments, including repurchase obligations,
. which have maturities at the time of purchase of three months or less. The carrying amounts

reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair

value.

Inventory
Inventory is valued at lower of cost or market, with cost determined using average cost method.

Investments

Short-term investments include bank deposits, money markets, and fixed-income securities, and
are held for short-term cash management purposes and will mature within one year. The carrying
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for short-term investments approximate their

fair value.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include investments or other assets held by trustees under indenture
agreements and professional liability programs and designated assets set aside by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”). The Board-designated assets have been set aside for future capital
improvements. The Board retains control of these assets and may, at its discretion, use them for
other purposes. In addition, assets limited as to use include the temporarily restricted and donor-
restricted endowment funds, except for the interest in beneficial trusts. Amounts required to meet
current liabilities of the System that can be paid by assets limited as to use have been reflected as
current assets in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on
the measurement date. Fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices, except for
alternative investments for which quoted market prices are not available. The System has adopted
a hierarchy of valuation inputs based on the extent to which observable inputs are available.
Observable inputs reflect market data and unobservable inputs reflect the System’s own
assumptions about how market participants would value an asset based on the best information
available. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.
Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, investments
determined to be other than temporarily impaired, interest, dividends and unrealized gains and
losses on trading securities) is included in the excess of revenues over expenses unless the
income or loss is restricted by donor or law. Investment income restricted for specific purposes by
donor or legal requirements is recorded as temporarily or permanently restricted on the
consolidated statements of changes in net assets.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Donated items are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution. Cost
incurred in the development and installation of internal-use software are expensed or capitalized
depending on whether they are incurred in the preliminary project stage, application development
stage, or post implementation stage. The carrying value of propenrty, plant and equipment is
reviewed if the facts and circumstances suggest that it may be impaired. Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment is calculated by use of the straight-line, half-year method at rates intended to
depreciate the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, which generally range from three to

forty years.

Long-Lived Assets
Management continually reviews its long-lived assets for potential impairment in accordance with

authoritative guidance on impairment or disposal of long-lived assets.

Accrued Expenses
Accrued expense includes the liability for incurred items which are anticipated to be paid within a

year. This primarily includes accruals for payroll, payroll taxes and withholdings, employee
benefits, incentive compensation, real estate taxes as well as the current portion of workers
compensation, malpractice and debt financing activities.

Deferred Revenues
Deferred revenue includes payments received in advance for the Visiting Nurses Association’s

Home Health program and a rebate incentive program.

Deferred Financing Costs
Financing costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt are amortized over the

life of the debt based on the interest method.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at their fair value in
accordance with authoritative guidance on derivative instruments. In connection with the issuance
of certain indebtedness, the Obligated Group entered into an interest rate swap agreement (see
Note 10).The change in fair value of the swap agreement is recorded within non-operating gains
(losses) in the consolidated statement of operations.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are assets whose use by the System has been limited by donors
to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by
donors to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.

Donor-Restricted Contributions

Donor-restricted contributions are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When donor-
restricted contributions are expended for operating purposes or capital improvements, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated
statements of operations as other revenue or in the consolidated statements of changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions, respectively. Permanently restricted support is
maintained in perpetuity, with income generated reflected as increases in temporarily restricted net
assets until such time as the restrictions for use of the income are met. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as
unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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RMODF recognizes its interest in trustee-held funds at various financial institutions for which RMDF
has a beneficial interest. Periodically, the financial institutions distribute a portion of the income
earned on these funds to RMDF.

Excess of Revenues over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of revenues
over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues
over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the change in net unrealized investment
gains and losses on non-trading investments, permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates
for other than goods and services, contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired
using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such
assets), and the change in pension liability.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered. Contractual adjustments represent the difference
between established rates for services and amounts paid by third-party payors. Payments under
these agreements and programs are based on either a specific amount per case; costs, as defined,
of rendering services to program beneficiaries; or contracted price. Amounts for uncollectible
accounts are also included as reductions to net patient service revenue. Contractual adjustments
and bad debts are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered,
and are adjusted in future periods as final settiements are determined.

Revenue from managed care payors accounted for 48% and 46% of the System’s net patient
service revenue excluding bad debts in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Revenue from Medicare and
Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 49% and 45% of net patient service revenue
excluding bad debts in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Due to the complexity and subjectivity of interpreting the Medicare and Medicaid programs, there is
a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.
The impact of any change in estimates is recorded in the year the change is determined. Changes
in prior-year estimated amounts due to third parties impacted net patient service revenue by ($118)
and ($35) in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Presented below is the System’s patient service revenue and contractual allowance activity for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, not including the lllinois Provider Assessment Program
revenues:

2014 2013

Gross patient service revenue:
Inpatient hospital services $ 573,298 $ 541,767
Outpatient hospital services 390,478 346,145
Physician and other 196,486 179,952
1,160,262 1,067,864
Less contractual allowances and charity care (743,254) (669,994)
Net patient service revenue--before eliminations 417,008 397,870
Consolidation eliminations (18,255) (14,695)
Net patient service revenue $ 398,753 $ 383,175
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Charity Care ,

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reflected as net patient
service revenue (Note 4).

Other Operating Revenue

Other operating revenue consists of cafeteria and other sales to patients, employees, and visitors;
grants; income or loss from joint ventures; investment income derived from RMDF's activities;
unrestricted donations, auxiliary services, electronic medical record incentives, Medicaid interest,

and other miscellaneous income.

Presented below is a table of other operating revenue for the years ended December 31, 2013 and

2012:
2014 2013

Grants $ 4407 3% 6,301
Investment income 4,092 15,070
Electronic medical record incentive 4,050 5,446
Medical lab 4,525 3,842
Joint ventures 3,264 3,343
Cafeteria 1,800 1,788
Daycare center 1,426 1,542
Donations and contributions 1,190 1,458
Lease and rental 493 760
Medicaid prompt-pay interest 109 3,083
Other 3,056 3,027

Other operating revenues and net assets released from restrictions $ 28412 $ 45660

New Accounting Pronouncements
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is
the sole source of authoritative non-governmental U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to the ASC to improve the consistency of revenue
recognition practices across industries for economically similar transactions. The core principle is
that an entity recognizes revenue for goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the

consideration it expects to receive in return. The guidance is effective for periods beginning after

December 15, 2016. RHS is currently evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events
The System has evaluated subsequent events through March 27, 2015, which coincides with the

release of the financial statements. No significant events were identified.

3. Third-Party Reimbursement Programs

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Hospital at
amounts different from their established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with
major third-party payors follows:

s Medicare — Inpatient acute care services provided to Medicare program benéeficiaries are
paid based on Medicare’s Prospective Payment System (PPS). These rates vary according
10
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to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
Inpatient rehabilitation services are paid based on Medicare’s PPS for rehabilitation facilities.
These rates vary based on clinical and other factors, similar to PPS. Inpatient psychiatric
services are paid on a prospective per diem rate based on diagnostic related group
assignments and other factors. Most outpatient services are paid under Medicare's
Outpatient Prospective Payment System (OPPS) based on Ambulatory Payment
Classification groups. Those outpatient services excluded from OPPS continue to be paid
based on fee schedules or cost-based methodologies. The Hospital is reimbursed for cost-
reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of
annual cost reports. The Hospital's Medicare cost reports have been audited and settled by
the Medicare fiscal intermediary through the year ended December 31, 2011.

e Medicaid — Reimbursement for services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries
includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, per diem payments, discounts from
established charges, and fee schedules.

e lllinois Provider Reimbursements — In December 2004, the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) approved the lllinois Hospital Assessment Program (the
“Program”) to improve Medicaid reimbursement for lllinois hospitals. The Program requires
the hospitals to pay a tax which is determined based on certain factors including bed
numbers and various hospital utilization factors. The funds raised through the tax are
matched by the federal government and then a distribution is made to the hospitals based
on certain factors including Medicaid inpatient and outpatient utilization, trauma status, and
other measures. The program is effective through June 30, 2018.

The Hospital's tax assessment for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was ‘
$12,096 and $12,254, respectively. The amount distributed to the Hospital was $24,955 and

$25,160 for 2014 and 2013, respectively. No amounts were due to or from the Hospital

under the program at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Beginning July 2014, a new Medicaid reimbursement system was implemented which
resulted in decreased payments to the Hospital. [n order to compensate for these lower
payments,; the lllinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services initiated a 2-year
transition payment program. A total of $2,903 was received from this program in 2014.
These payments are included in provider tax and other provider payments in the
consolidated statements of operations.

o Other — Reimbursement for services to certain patients is received from commercial
insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations.
The basis for reimbursement includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, per
diem payments, and discounts from established charges.

e Regulatory Environment Including Fraud and Abuse Matters — The health care industry is
subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments. These
laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure,
accreditation, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursement
for patient services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Government activity
continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations of
fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws
and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together
with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for
patient services previously billed. Management believes that the System is in compliance
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with fraud and abuse, as well as other applicable government laws and regulations.
However, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.

4, Charity, Uncompensated Care and Community Benefits

The System’s policy is to provide medically necessary health care services regardless of the
patient's ability to pay for such care. The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level
of charity, uncompensated care and community benefit it provides. These records include the costs
for services and supplies furnished under its policy as well as the estimated difference between the
cost of services provided to Medicaid patients and the reimbursement received from the state for
this care. The costs of service are estimated using the annual cost-to-charge ratio.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the following levels of charity care and
community service, including services for which the System received no reimbursement or was
reimbursed below cost, were provided:

(unaudited) (unaudited)

2014 2013
Estimated costs and expenses incurred for charity care $ 6,067 $ 12,631
Estimated costs over reimbursement for Medicaid patient's care 22,365 16,624
Cost of other community service, research and education 5,143 5,162
Total Charity Care and Community Benefits $ 33565 $ 34,417
Estimated cost over reimbursement for Medicare patient's care 54,447 53,625
Estimated costs for bad debt 5777 11,052

Total Cost of Charity, Uncompensated Care & Other Community Benefits $ 93789 $ 99,094

The System actively sponsors community benefits that respond to community needs. These
programs focus on the underserved with the intention of improving the overall health of the entire
community. Examples of this outreach include mobile clinics, partnering with local schools and
employers to provide health screenings, support and health education; providing social services,
such as multi-faith ministry, interpreters and support groups; providing emergency medical training
to other providers across the region; and serving as the region’s emergency disaster response
center. The System’s 24 hour emergency room, mental health services, and muitiple convenient
care locations provide for various and timely health care needs throughout the region.

5. Concentration of Credit Risk

The System grants credit without collateral from its patients, most of who are local residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-
party payors as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was as follows:

2014 2013
Medicare 16 % 13 %
Medicaid 35 31
Managed care 34 32
Commercial 6 8
Self-pay and other 9 16
100 % 100 %
12
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6. Fair Value Measurements

Authoritative guidance on fair value establishes a hierarchy of valuation inputs based on the extent
to which the inputs are observable in the marketplace. Observable inputs reflect market data
obtained from sources independent of the System and unobservable inputs reflect management's
own assumptions about how market participants would value an asset or liability based on the best
information available. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value under the authoritative
guidance must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the
first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair

value.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary
valuation methodologies used by the System for financial instruments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. The three levels of inputs are as follows:

e Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

o [level 2—Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the same term of the assets.

o Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the
jowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following is a
description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair value:

o Marketable equity securities: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market
in which the individual securities are traded.

Corporate bonds: Certain corporate bonds are valued at the closing price reported in
the active market in which the bond is traded. Other corporate bonds traded in the
over-the-counter market and listed securities for which no sale was reported on the
last business day of the fiscal year are valued at the average of the last reported
bid and asked prices. For certain corporate bonds that do not have an established
fair value, a fair value is established based on yields currently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

U.S. treasury and government obligations: Certain securities are valued at the
closing price reported in the active market in which the individual security is traded.
For certain securities that do not have an established fair value, a fair value is
established based on yields currently available on comparable securities.

o Mutual funds: Valued at the published net asset value (NAV) of shares held by the
System at year end.

Interests held in trusts: Valued at the percentage of the System's interests at year
end based upon current market value of the underlying assets. Trusts which may
distribute their principal following specified time restrictions or other criteria are
classified as temporarily restricted net assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
Trusts which are held in perpetuity are classified as permanently restricted net
assets.
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The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the System believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following table presents the financial instruments reported or disclosed at fair value as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, by category on the statement of financial position in accordance
with the valuation hierarchy defined above:

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
2014 Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 6,318 - % - 3 6,318
U.S. Treasury and
government obligations 17,130 20,936 - 38,066
Corporate bonds - 31,224 - 31,224
Mutual funds 109,051 - - 109,051
Marketable equity securities 47,163 - - 47,163
Other 375 - - 375
Total short-term investments
and assets limited as to use 180,037 52,160 - 232,197
Beneficial interests in trust ~ 11,647 - 11,647
Total assets at fair value $ 180,037 % 63,807 $ - % 243,844
2014 Liabilities
Long term debt $ - 3 89,419 % - % 89,419
Interest rate swap - 1,992 - 1,992
Total liabilities at fair value  $ - % 91,411 $ - $ 91,411
2013 Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 6,010 % - % - 6,010
U.S. Treasury and
government obligations 13,957 18,161 - 32,118
Corporate bonds - 37,767 - 37,767
Mutual funds 109,738 - - 109,738
Marketable equity securities 46,842 - - 46,842
Other 472 - - 472
Total short-term investments
and assets limited as to use 177,019 55,928 - 232,947
Beneficial interests in trust - 11,563 - 11,663
Total assets at fair value $ 177,019 $ 67491 % - % 244 510
2013 Liabilities
Long term debt $ - 3 91,380 $ - % 91,380
Interest rate swap - 1,954 - 1,954
Total liabilities at fair value  $ - $ 03,334 % - 3 93,334
14
ATTACHMENT 36

77




Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

7. Assets Limited as to Use

The composition of assets limited as to use at December 31, 2014 and 2013, is set forth in the
following table. All investments are stated at fair value.

2014 2013

Board-designated investments and trustee held:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5202 % 4,924

Corporate bonds 22,455 26,709

U.S. government securities 24,889 21,179

Mutual funds 104,286 104,991

Equity securities 45,043 44754

Total board-designated and trustee held investments 201,875 202,557

Donor-restricted and endowment funds:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,015 1,020

Corporate bonds 629 751

U.S. government securities 725 627

Mutual funds 3,280 3,291

Equity securities 1,461 1,451

Total donor-restricted and endowment funds 7,110 7,140

Total assets limited as to use $ 208985 $ 209,697
Total assets limited to use are classified as follows in the
consolidated balance sheets:

Current $ 11,304 $ 11,390

Noncurrent 197,681 198,307
Total $ 208,985 $ 209,697

Investment income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the

following:
2014 - 2013
Interest and dividends $ 4,081 $ 3,490
Gains on sale of investments, net 12,935 10,601
Gains (losses) on market appreciation, net (7,265) 16,917
Total $ 9751 $ 31,008
Reported as:
Other operating revenue $ 4092 % 15,070
Nonoperating investment income 5,659 15,938
Total $ 9751 § 31,008
15
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8.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The components of property, plant and equipment as of December 31 are as follows:

2014 2013
Land and improvements $ 15941 % 15,774
Buildings 119,247 118,357
Equipment 292,631 315,525
Construction in progress 8,970 3,867
436,789 453,523
Less accumulated depreciation (291,634) (312,097)
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 145,155 $ 141,426

Approximately $32,346 has been spent through 2014 on development of an electronic medical
records (EMR) system. The first phase of the EMR went live in 2011 while the second phase was
placed in use in April 2013. Depreciation expense for the EMR totaled $5,074 and $4,105 in 2014
and 2013, respectively.

Investments in Joint Ventures

The System's investments in joint ventures are recorded on an equity basis. The related income or
loss is included in the consolidated statements of operations as other revenue. The investments in
joint ventures consist of the following: a 27% ownership interest in KSB/RMHSC Partnership
(KSB), which owns and leases a medical office building; a 50% ownership interest in VanMatre
HealthSouth Rehabilitation Hospital (VanMatre), which provides inpatient and outpatient
rehabilitation services; and a 11.1% interest in lllinois Partnership for Health, an Accountable Care
Entity organized to provide a managed care option to Medicaid enrollees through the Affordable
Care Act. The recorded investment at December 31, 2014 and 2013, as well as the related income
or loss reported for the years then ended is as follows:

Joint Venture

Joint Venture Income (Loss)
Investment for the years ended
as of December 31 December 31

2014 2013 2014 2013
KSB $ 277 § 289 §$ 28 % 28

IPH 250 - - -
VanMatre 9,698 8,969 3,237 3,316
Total $ 10225 $ 9258 $ 3265 $ 3,344
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10. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31 consists of the following:

2014 2013

lllinois Health Facilities Authority Bonds

Revenue bonds, Series 2012 fixed rates,
maturing at varying amounts through 2021, collateralized by
certain receivables and other assets of the Obligated Group $ 27380 % 30,580

Revenue bonds, Series 2008 variable rates,
maturing at varying amounts through 2040, collateralized by

certain receivables and other assets of the Obligated Group 60,800 60,800
Capitalized lease of DaVinci surgery robot, 60-month term
through June 2019 1,239 -
Total long-term debt 89,419 91,380
Less current maturities (3,626) (3,200)
Less unamortized discount (102) (109)
Total long-term-debt, net of current maturities $ 85,691 $ 88,071

The fair value of debt is based on the pricing of fixed-rate bonds of market participants, including
assumptions about the present value of current market interest rates, and bonds of comparable
quality and maturity. The fair-value of long-term debt would be a level 2 hierarchy.

Under the terms of a Master Trust Indenture, the Obligated Group (consisting of RMH, RHPH and
RMDF) has issued general obligation bonds through the lllinois Health Facilities Authority. All
outstanding debt under the Indenture is the general, joint, and several obligations of the members

of the Obligated Group.

On May 2, 2012, the Obligated Group issued $35,075 of fixed rate bonds to refund the Series 1997
revenue bonds. The bonds were issued through a direct purchase (private placement) with a fixed
rate of 2.79%. Principal payments are due annually with final payment due in August 2021. An
additional covenant calculation for days cash on hand is required with this agreement.

During 2008, the Obligated Group refunded (through a legal defeasance) the Series 1994 revenue
bonds through the issuance of $60,800 Series 2008 variable rate demand revenue bonds. These
bonds accrue interest at variable rates which reset weekly. The variable rates ranged from 0.747%
to 0.837% in 2014 and 0.767% to 0.957% in 2013. The Series 2008 bonds are collateralized by a
letter of credit with an expiration date of January 2, 2016. The Series 2008 bonds also have a put
option that allows the holders to redeem the bonds prior to maturity. The Obligated Group has an
agreement with a remarketing agent to remarket any bonds redeemed as a result of the exercise of
the put options. If the bonds cannot be remarketed, a bank will purchase the bonds under the letter
of credit. The Obligated Group has an obligation to make payments on the letter of credit for
unremarketed bonds over a period of three years from the date of a draw on the letter of credit with

no principal due in the first year.

In March 20089, the Obligated Group entered into an interest rate swap agreement to hedge, or
offset, future fluctuations in interest rates relative to the variable rate debt relative to the Series
2008 bonds. The notional vailue of the swap is $36,500 and is scheduled to terminate in August
2019. Under the terms of the swap agreement, the Obligated Group makes fixed interest
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payments of 2.435% to a counterparty and receives a variable rate based on a percentage of
LIBOR. Under this agreement, the System may be exposed to loss in the event of nonperformance
by the counterparty to the interest rate swap agreement.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was a liability
of $1,992 and $1,954, respectively, and is inciuded in other liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Net interest paid under the terms of the swap agreement totaled
$829 and $823 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is included in interest expense in the
consolidated statement of operations.

In connection with previous Series 1994 bonds, the Obligated Group entered into an interest rate
swap agreement to hedge, or offset, future fluctuations in interest rates relative to its variable rate
debt. The notional value of the swap (the amount on which settlement calculations were based)
was $33,650 until terminated in 2008. Under the terms of the swap agreement, the Obligated
Group made fixed interest rate payments of 5.95% to a counterparty, and received a variable rate
as determined consistent with the variable rate of interest on a portion of the 1994 Bonds. At
December 11, 2008, the Obligated Group gave notice to the counterparty to terminate the swap
and subsequently made a payment to the counterparty. At December 31, 2012, an accrued liability
of $2,825 remained in the consolidated balance sheet pending final settlement of the swap
termination. In February 2013, a final settlement was reached for $2,825 with payment made in
March 2013.

In 2014, the System entered into a capitalized lease agreement for a da Vinci surgery robot. Under
the terms of the agreement, 80 monthly payments of $24 will be required through June 2019.

In December 2014, the System entered into a $10,000 lease line of credit agreement for medical
equipment. The credit line may be accessed for a period of one year with rental factors determined
at the time of each equipment acquisition. As of December 31, 2014, no amounts were
outstanding as the line of credit had not been accessed.

Future maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2014, are as follows:

2015 3 3,626
2016 3,801
2017 3,987
2018 4,177
2019 4,233
Thereafter 69,595

$ 89,419

Under the Indenture and related loan agreements, the Obligated Group is subject to certain
covenants related to transfers of assets, mergers and consolidations, restrictions on additional
indebtedness, and the maintenance of certain financial ratios. Management believes that the
Obligated Group was in compliance with the debt covenants for the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013.

Effective May 10, 2012, the System entered into a line of credit agreement for $20,000 with
expiration on March 29, 2013. An extension of the $20,000 line of credit agreement was completed
in March 2013 with an expiration date of March 31, 2014. No credit line was used in 2013 or 2014.
An additional extension was completed in February 2014 with an expiration date of March 31,
2015.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

11.

The System has a letter of credit for $825 which matures on October 31, 2015. The letter of credit
is a requirement by the State of Illinois Industrial Commission in order to be a self-insured employer
under the Workers’ Compensation program. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, no amounts were

outstanding.

Pension and Postretirement Plans

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The System sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan which covered substantially
all full-time employees and regular part-time employees until frozen in 2003. At that time,
employees elected to stay within the defined benefit pension plan or opt into the defined
contribution plan. No new participants were allowed to join the plan after this time. Effective March
19, 2012, the plan’s benefits were frozen and benefits ceased to accrue for plan participants
resulting in a curtailment at December 31, 2011. Pension benefits are determined based upon
employee earnings, social security benefits, covered compensation, and years of service. The
funding policy is to contribute annually the amount required to be funded under provisions of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), as determined by an actuary. The
System contributed $4,000 and $2,900 for the defined benefit pension plan during 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The System expects to incur expense of $82 in 2015.

In 2014 and 2013, the change in the liability not yet recognized within pension expenses was
$(19,325) and $21,745. This is included as a component of the consolidated statement of changes
in unrestricted net assets. The measurement date is December 31 of each fiscal year.

During 2014 and 2013, lump-sum benefit payments from the plan were $5,618 and $6,055,
respectively, and exceeded the interest cost for the fiscal years. As a result, settlement accounting
was triggered resulting in a re-measurement of plan assets and pension obligation as well as
accelerating the recognition of prior service costs. As such, the Plan recognized $1,232 and $610
as settlement charges in 2014 and 2013, respectively. For 2015, settlement accounting will be
triggered if lump-sum payouts exceed the interest cost of $3,929.

Defined Contribution Plans

The System contributes 3.3% of compensation for the benefit of any participant in either the
Rockford Health System Fixed Contribution Plan (the “Fixed Contribution Plan”), or the Rockford
Clinic Retirement Plan (the “Clinic Retirement Plan”}, that is employed as of December 31 each
year. Employees are eligible to participate in one of the two defined contribution plans after service
and age requirements are met, as long as they do not participate in the defined benefit pension
plan. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the System’s liability to the Fixed Contribution Plan was
$3,527 and $3,786, respectively. The cash contribution to the Fixed Contribution Plan for the prior-
year liability in 2014 and 2013 was $3,567 and $3,527, respectively. At December 31, 2014 and
2013, the System’s liability to the Clinic Retirement Plan was $553 and $561, respectively. Cash
contributions made to the Clinic Retirement Plan for the prior-year liability in 2014 and 2013 were
$541 and $547, respectively.

Voluntary Contribution Retirement Plan

The System also participates in a voluntary defined contribution pension plan. Participants can
contribute gross compensation per the plan’s agreement and federal guidelines and the System
makes matching contributions that are limited to an amount specified in the plan and per federal
guidelines. The System’s contribution expense for this plan for the years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 amounted to $5,847 and $5,757, respectively.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

Salary Deferral Retirement Plan

The System offers a 457(b) retirement plan for highly compensated individuals. This voluntary
salary deferral is recorded as a long-term asset and liability to the System of $7,448 and $6,480 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These amounts are included in other assets and other
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Defined Benefit Postretirement Medical Plan

The System sponsors a postretirement medical plan with plan changes effective January 1, 2004.
The defined benefit postretirement medical plan provides medical benefits for salaried and non-
salaried employees hired before January 1, 2004. The retiree medical plan is noncontributory and
is unfunded, other than amounts resulting from the timing of deposits to pay benefits. The System
recognizes the expected cost of these postretirement benefits during the years the employees
render service. Postretirement benefit expense is allocated among the participating entities as
determined by an actuary. The expected expense for the System in 2015 is $644 for this plan. In
2014 and 2013, the change in the liability not yet recognized within postretirement expenses was
$575 and $1,381. This is included as a component within changes as unrestricted net assets apart
from expenses, as the initially recognized amounts. The measurement date is December 31 of
each fiscal year.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Information regarding the benefit obligations and assets of the pension and postretirement medical
benefit plans for RHS as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as foliows:

. Postretirement
Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation — beginning of year $ 76,504 $ 92,177  $ 7,860 $ 8,275

Service cost - - 659 800

Interest cost 3,806 3,754 310 284

Actuarial (gains) losses 17,534 (12,838) (238) (1,394)

Settlements (5,618) {(6,055) - -

Participant Contributions - - 187 124

Plan changes - - (703) -

Benefits paid (643) (534) (282) (229)
Benefit obligation — end of year $ 91,583 $ 76,504 § 7,793 $ 7,860
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets —

beginning of year $ 73660 $ 64,863 $ - $ -

Actual return on plan assets 2,009 12,486 - -

Employer contributions 4,000 2,900 95 105

Settlements (5,618) (6,055) - -

Participant Contributions - - 187 124

Benefits paid (643) (534) (282) (229)
Fair value of plan assets — end of year 73,408 73,660 - -
Funded status of the plan $ (18,175) § (2,844) $ (7,793)$% (7,860)
Amounts recognized in the statement of

financial position

Group balance sheet:

Current liabilities - - (516) (497)

Noncurrent liabilities (18,175) (2,844) (7,277) (7,363)
Net amount recognized $ (18,175) § (2,844) $ (7,793)$ (7,860)

Pension and postretirement medical changes, other than periodic pension expense, that have been
included within changes in unrestricted net assets consist of:

Postretirement

Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013
Prior service credit arising during the period  $ -3 - 3 (703) $ -
Actuarial loss (gain) arising during the period 20,624 (20,717) (238) (1,394)
Reclassification adjustment for recognition
of prior service (cost) credit - - 152 13
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss 214
Recognition due to settlements (1,232) (610)
Reclassification adjustment for recognition
of actuarial loss (gain) (66) (418) - -
Total recognized as a separate adjustment
to net assets $ 19326 $ (21,745) % (575) %  (1,381)
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

The pension plan and postretirement medical plan items not yet recognized as a component of
periodic pension and postretirement medical plan expense, but included within unrestricted net

assets, are as follows:
Postretirement

Pension Benefits Medical Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain) $ 24564 % 5239 $ (2,175 % (2,151)
Unrecognized prior service cost (credit) - - (567) {16)
Net amount unrecognized $ 24564 % 5239 $ (2,742)$ (2,167)

An estimated $433 in net actuarial loss will be included as a component of period pension expense
in 2015. An estimated $146 in prior service credit will be included as components of period

postretirement medical plan expense in 2015.
Postretirement

Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013
Assumptions:
Discount rate-benefit obligation 4.37 % 5.12 % 347%  4.08%
Discount rate-benefit cost 5.12%/4.45% 4.1%/5.06% 4.08 % 321 %
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A
Assumed rate of return on plan assets 7.00 % 7.00 % N/A N/A

For the pension plan, the discount rate was selected with consideration of the plan’s characteristics
and reference to a hypothetical bond portfolio. The discount rate on the postretirement plan was
selected with consideration of the plan’s characteristics and reference to the Citigroup Above
Median Pension Discount Curve.

For postretirement medical benefit obligation measurement purposes, 7.0% and 7.5% annual rate
of increase in the per capita cost of covered healthcare benefits was assumed for 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% for 2018 and remain at that
level thereafter. A 1% change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following

effects:

1% increase 1% decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components for 2014  § 46 $ (43)
Effect on December 31, 2014 postretirement benefit obligation 115 (109)

The components of accumulated postretirement medical benefit obligation as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, for the System are as follows:

2014 2013
Accumulated postretirement benéefit obligation:
Retirees $ 456 $ 380
Fully eligible plan participants 3,019 3,028
Other active plan participants 4,318 4,452
Total $ 7793 $ 7,860

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $91,583 and $76,504
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. The System contributed $4,000 to the defined benefit plan in
2014 and expects to contribute $4,000 during the 2015 plan year.
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

The components of the RHS net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013 are as follows:
Postretirement

Pension Benefits Medical Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013
Service cost $ - $ - 3 659 $ 800
Interest cost 3,806 3,754 310 284
Expected return on plan assets (5,098) (4,608) - -
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) - - (152) (13)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss (gain) 66 418 (214) -
Net Periodic Pension Cost/(Income) (1,226) (436)
Settlement Charges 1,232 610
Benefit cost $ 6 $ 174  § 603 § 1,071

Expected future benefit payments for the years ended December 31, are as follows:
Postretirement

Pension Medical
- 2015 $ 3,336 $ 516
2016 5,011 544
2017 . 5,809 565
2018 4,545 720
2019 5,816 843
2020-2024 31,977 4,161

Plan Assets
The System’s investment goals are to achieve returns in excess of the defined benefit plan’s

actuarial assumptions, commensurate with the plan’s risk posture and long-term investment
horizon; to invest in a prudent manner in accordance with fiduciary requirements of ERISA; and to
ensure that plan assets will meet the obligations of the plan as they come due.

Investment management of the defined benefit pension plan is delegated to professional
investment management firms that must adhere to policy guidelines and objectives, which are
approved by the investment committee. The investment policy includes specific guidelines for
quality, asset concentration, asset mix, asset allocations, and performance expectations. The
pension fund investment allocations are periodically reviewed for compliance with the pension
investment policy by the investment committee. An independent investment consultant is used to
measure and report on investment performance; to perform asset/liability modeling studies and
recommend changes to objectives, guidelines, manager, or asset class structure; and to keep the
System informed of current investment trends and issues.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumptions is based on modeling studies
completed with the assistance of the System’s actuaries and investment consultants. The models
take into account inflation, asset class returns, and bond yields for both domestic and foreign
markets. They are also calibrated to take into consideration historical experience, including a
random variable to reflect reai-life uncertainty of the future and to project a large number of future
economic scenarios. The consequences of adopting various investment policies on the future
financial health of the defined benefit pension plan under each of the scenarios are then evaluated.
These studies, along with the history of returns for the plan, indicated that expected future returns,
weighted by asset allocation, support an expected long-term asset return assumption of 5.71% and

7.00% for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
23

/O

ATTACHMENT 36




Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

The fair values of the System's pension plan assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 by asset

category are as follows:

Asset category

Cash
Equity securities
U.S. companies
Mutual funds
U.S. companies
International companies
Fixed Income securities
U.S. Treasury and
government obligations
Corporate Bonds
Mutual funds
Unconstrained fixed income
U.S. Mortgage backed
securities
Comingled
Short-term fund

Total

Asset category
Cash
Equity securities
U.S. companies
Mutual funds
U.S. companies
International companies
Fixed Income securities
U.S. Treasury and
government obligations
Corporate Bonds
Mutual funds
Unconstrained fixed income
U.S. Mortgage backed
securities

Total

Fair Value Measurement at

December 31, 2014

Quoted Significant
Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
8913 % 8913 § - 9% -
11,392 11,392
12,775 12,775
6,538 6,538
7,832 5,034 2,798
6,336 6,336
6,170 6,170 -
3,430 3,430
10,022 10,022
73,408 $ 54252 $ 19,156 §$ -
Fair Value Measurement at
December 31, 2013
Quoted Significant
Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
1,701 $ 1,701 § - % -
19,722 19,722
20,191 20,191
11,289 11,289
5,302 2,870 2,432
7,218 7,218
5,329 5,329
2,908 2,908
73660 9% 64,010 $ 9650 $ -
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

The Company’s target allocations for plan assets have been changed to ranges due to the potential
termination of the closed pension plan. Asset allocation ranges starting in 2014 are Cash &
Equivalents 0.0% to 100.0%, Equity and Fixed Income are both 0.0% to 50.0%. Equity securities
primarily include investments in large-cap and small-cap companies primarily located in the United
States of America. Fixed income securities include corporate bonds of companies from diversified
industries, mortgage-backed securities and U.S. Treasuries.

The target and actual allocations for plan assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2014 2013
Target Target
Range Actual Range Actual
Equity securities 0-50 % 42 % 55-75 % 70 %
Fixed income 0-50 46 2242 28
Cash and cash equivalents 0-100 12 0-6 2
100 % 100 %

12. Restricted Net Assets and Endowment

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the System has been limited by donors
to a specific time period or purpose. Temporarily restricted net assets as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 are available for the following purposes:

2014 2013
Care for the indigent : $ 1,162  § 1,079
Capital purchases 9 9
Other purposes 12,695 12,457
Total ) 13,866 $ 13,545

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System
in perpetuity. Permanently restricted net assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are invested
for the following purposes:

2014 2013
Care for the indigent $ 3089 $ 2,967
Educational programs 890 882
General services 4,453 4,449
Total $ 8,432 § 8,298

Effective June 30, 2009, illinois passed “Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act’
(UPMIFA). The Board of Directors of the System has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the
preservation of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the System classifies as
permanently restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining
portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net
assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for
expenditure by the System in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
UPMIFA. :

25

/0F

ATTACHMENT 36




Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

The Board of Directors has determined that donor-restricted endowment funds will be governed by
specific policies, which assure that the original gift shall be protected to perpetuity as the endowed
corpus and distribution shall not be made if it were to bring the value below that threshold; which
explain the calculation used to determine funds available for expenditure, and which govern the
process for expenditure of funds, in accordance with donor restrictions.

The System has the following donor-restricted and Board-designated endowment activities during
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 delineated by net asset class:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets,
beginning of 2014 $ 391 % 39832 % 3814 3 8,137
Investment return

Investment income 6 13 55 74

Net appreciation

(realized and unrealized) 10 13 56 79
Total investment return 16 26 111 153
Contributions - 57 - 57
Appropriation of

endowment assets

for expenditure (35) - (35)
Reclassification for UPMIFA - 371 - 371
Endowment net assets,
end of 2014 $ 372§ 4386 $ 3925 $ 8,683

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets,
beginning of 2013 $ 377 % 3374 § 3363 §% 7,114
Investment return

Investment income 6 11 53 70

Net appreciation

(realized and unrealized) 42 86 398 526
Total investment return 48 97 451 596
Contributions - 149 - 149
Appropriation of

endowment assets

for expenditure (34) - (34)
Reclassification for UPMIFA - 312 - 312
Endowment net assets,
end of 2013 $ 391 $ 3932 % 3,814 $ 8,137
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands of dollars)

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as

follows:
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

As of December 31, 2014

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - 3 4386 §$ 3,925 % 8,311
Board-designated endowment funds 372 - - 372
Total funds $ 372§ 4386 3 3,925 % 8,683
As of December 31, 2013

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - 3 3932 § 3814 % 7,746
Board-designated endowment funds 391 - - 391
Total funds $ 391 $ 3932 3% 3814 § 8,137

Investment and Spending Policies

The System has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain
the purchasing power of endowment assets. The System expects its endowment funds over time
to exceed inflation by 2 to 3 basis points annually. To achieve its long-term rate of return
objectives, the System relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized gains) and current yield (interest and
dividends). Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

13. Functional Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its service area. Expenses
related to providing these services for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as

follows:
2014 2013
" Health care services $ 363598 $ 344731
General and administrative 80,046 83,519
Total $ 443644 $ 428250

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases .

RHS has entered into leases for surgical equipment and office space. The operating leases
contain a renewal option, non-cancellable terms, and escalation clauses. Future minimum rental
commitments at December 31, 2014, for these operating leases are as follows:

2015 $ 525
2016 475
2017 478
2018 316
2019 143
Thereafter — -

$ 1,937
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Rockford Health System and Affiliated Corporations
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Contingencies

The Hospital, RHPH, and VNA are defending various claims and lawsuits alleging malpractice and
other related lawsuits through the normal course of business. Although the outcome of claims
cannot be predicted with certainty, in management’s opinion, their ultimate disposition will not have
a material adverse effect on the financial position of the System.

15. Insurance

The Hospital, RHPH, and VNA have established a self-insurance program on an occurrence basis
for professional liability, which provides for both self-insured limits and purchased coverage above
such limits. Insurance coverage in excess of the self-insured limits is carried on a claims-made
basis. Excess general liability coverage is provided by RHIL, who purchases reinsurance coverage
from muitiple third-party carriers. At both December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no receivables
for claims paid in excess of self-insured limits.

The Hospital, RHPH, and VNA had self-insurance reserves of $59,219 and $59,944 at

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, both discounted at 3.0%. The undiscounted reserves
at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $65,211 and $65,633, respectively. As of December 31,
2014 and 2013, investments trustee-held for RHS’s professional liability program were $63,613 and
$70,652, respectively.
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Report of Independent Auditors
on Supplemental Consolidating Information

To the Board of Directors of
Rockford Health System:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rockford Health System and Affiliated
Corporations (the "System") as of December 31, 2014 and for the year then ended and our report thereon
appears on page 1 of this document. That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves and
other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to
present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial
position and results of operations of the individual companies.

pwww&pm LLp

March 27, 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, One North Wacker, Chicago, IL 60606 ATTACHMENT 36
T: (312) 298 2000, F: (312) 298 2001, www.pwc.com/us
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RoCk¥ORD HEALTH
_ System

August 14, 2015

Iltinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Project Funding
To Whom It May Concern:

I hereby attest that the total estimated project costs associated with modernization of Rockford
Memorial Hospital’s Rockton Avenue campus, and as described in the Certificate of Need
application filed with the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board, will be addressed
through the use of cash and other liquid assets.

Sincerely, W

Henry Seybold
Senior Vice President
Finance & CFO

STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

BE IT KNOWN, that, on th¢ / _ day of August, 2015, befare me personally came
Henry Seybold, SVP, Finance & CFO, who executed the foregoing instrument, and he

acknowledged to me that he executed the same. P N ? 7) _
e U Ay

OFFICIAL SEAL Notary Public
JUUIE A PETERSON
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINCIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 12/12/2015
ATTACHMENT 39A
Rockford Memorial Rocktard Health Van Matire HealthSouth Visiting Nurses Rockford Memaorial
Hospitai Physicians Rehabilitation Hospltal Assoclation Development Foundation
2400 N. Rocldon Ave. 2300 N. Rockton Ave. 950 S. Mulford Rd. 4223 E. State St 2400 N. Rockton Ave.
Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, IL 61103 Rockford, iL 61108 Rackiord, Il. 61108 Rockford, IL 61103
{815) 871-5000 (815) 971-2000 (815) 381-8500 {815) 971-3550 {815) 971-4141
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SAFETY NET STATEMENT

RMH (RMH?) i1s a regional provider of safety net services, and through the proposed

projects, to maintain services at RMH-Rockton Avenue while initiating services at RMH-

Riverside, the ability to provide these services will be expanded. As examples of this expanded

ability to provide safety net services, and among the programmatic offerings that RMH has

committed to through this and the accompanying CON applications, are:

to maintain inpatient services at RMH-Rockton Avenue

to continue to operate a fully-staffed Emergency Department at RMH-
Rockton Avenue

to continue to operate one of the region’s two Level I Trauma Centers, with
the program relocating to RMH-Riverside

to continue to operate the area’

to make space available on the RMH-Rockton Avenue campus for not-for-
profit and community-based agencies that focus on the health care needs of
the underserved or financially disadvantaged

to continue to operate the region’s only NICU

to continue to operate with compliant and liberal financial assistance polices
to maintain its commitment to caring for the uninsured and Medicaid

recipients.

RMH is the area’s largest provider of inpatient charity care services (Source: 2013 IDPH

Hospital Profiles), both in terms the number of patients admitted and percentage of admissions.

In addition, during 2013, RMH’s charity care as a percentage of net revenue was 3.4%.

Because of RMH’s commitment to continue to operate all of its current inpatient and

outpatient services, either at RMH-Riverside, or RMH-Rockton Avenue, or in its many

outpatient centers located throughout the service area, the proposed projects will not adversely

ATTACHMENT 40
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impact access to safety net services. Rather, through the development of the RMH-Riverside

site, overall access will be improved.

ATTACHMENT 40
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good
Standing ' 33
2 | Site Ownership 38

3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be
identified with the % of ownership.

4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Etc. 39
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 40
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 41
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization 42
8 | Obligation Document if required
9 | Cost Space Reguirements 43
10 | Discontinuation 45
11 | Background of the Applicant 59
12 | Purpose of the Project 62
13 | Alternatives to the Project 64
14 | Size of the Project 68
15 | Project Service Utilization 70

16 | Unfinished or Shell Space

17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Sheli Space
18 | Master Design Project

19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions

Service Specific:
20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU 75
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental liiness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization

26 | In-Center Hemodialysis

27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

28 | Selected Organ Transplantation

29 | Kidney Transplantation

30 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

31 | Children’s Community-Based Health Care Center
32 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
33 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

34 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 79
Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

T
w
[$]

Financial and Economic Feasibility:
36 | Availability of Funds 82
37 | Financial Waiver
38 | Financial Viability

39 | Economic Feasibility 116
40 | Safety Net Impact Statement 119
41 | Charity Care Information 32
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